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Key figures
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T

2006" 20054
=0 A TS TR T T T s T e B e

New orders® 96,259 83,79
Sales® 87,325 75,445
Income from’ continuing operations 3,087 3,058
Loss from discontinued operations, nat of
income taxes (54) (810Q)
Net income 3,033 2,248
Net cash from operating and investing activities 739 (1,489)
therein:- Net cash provided by operating activities 5174 4,217

Net cosh used in investing aqtivities {4,435} - (5.706)
Shareholders’ equity (September 30) 29,306 27,022
Employees® (September 30, in thousands) 475 461

@ Fiscal year from Qctober 1 to September 30

@ Continuing operaticns (excluding the discontinued mobile devices activities)




“In fiscal 2:%006, we took major
steps to further optimize profit

and growth.”

Dr. Klaus Kleinfeld
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Siemens AG
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“ N Letter io our Shareholders
'l

Dear Shareho}lders,

In fiscal 2006, we made substantial progress toward achieving
sustainable profitable growth Company-wide. We based our
efforts on the rigorous iinplementation of our Fit4More pro-
gram, which comprisés the four pillars Performance and Port-
folio, Operational Excelliénce, People Excellence and Corporate
Responsibility (see also ppages 18 - 33 of this Report).

We're satisfied with the resuliis we achieved in fiscal 2006. In every quarter,
we exceeded our main targe:: sustainable profitable growth at twice the
global GDP rate, Year-on-yeal; new orgers surged 15 percent to €96 billion.
Six percent of this growth wals organic '(excluding portfolio measures and
currency effects). Sales climl:nled 16 percent to €87 billion, and eight percent
of this increase was organic. [Despite further restructuring costs due to
portfolio adjustments, we intizreased Group profit from Operations 12 per-
cent to roughty €5.3 billion. !;Iet income soared 35 percent to €3.0 billien,
and earnings per share rose 35 percent to €3.40.

Global megatrends are putiing windtin our sails.
To drive our businesses, we're'leveraging two global megatrends — demo-
graphic change and increasirtg urbaniz;ation. These megatrends are
exerting an ever-greater impe?ct on the‘world we live in. According to UN
projections, the world’s population will have increased by about one-third
and the average age will have jumped from 26 to 36 by 2050. More and
more people are moving to urban areas in search of better jobs, better edu-
cation and a better life. The UN predict:ﬁ that next year more peopie will be
living in cities than rural areas for the fifst time in human history.

In light of these developments, how can we meet the growing demand
for energy without degrading the environment? How can we shape the
future of manufacturing so thiat mare and better goods can be produced

/
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using fe\éver natural resources? How can we safeguard and improve the
mobility of people and goods? And how can we ensure the availability of
high-quality, affordable, healthcare while keeping pace with advancesiin
medical technology?
Innovation can make a major contribution to mastering these chal-

lenges. And this is precisely where our opportunitiesI lie, since we already
ho.ld_ leading positions worldwide in many of the teclhnologies required.
Our portfolio policies aim to strengthen and expand these positions.

A two-pronged strategy is positioning Siemens for the future.

The first Fit4More pillar[- Performance and Portfolio!- comprises two main
elements: targeted acquisitions and the strategic reorientation of specific
businesses, in particular our Information and Communlcatlons activities,

in fiscal 2006, we implemented a number of key portfoho enhancing meas-
ures in both areas. On the.one hand, we made a series of acquisitions that
will expand our positions in the long-term growth markets of power, envi-
ronmental technology, medical solutions, automation systems and public
and industrial infrastrugtures. On the other hand, we introduced numerous
measures to get Siemens Business Services (SBS) balck on track. These
measures included a strategic reorientation, which was completed at the

end of fiscal 2006.
!

+
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Two portfolio adjustmentsiwere of particular importance: a broadening of
the focus of our Medical Solutions Group (Med) and the decision to fold the
carrier business of our Comrriunications Group (Com) into a joint venture
with Nokia.
s Med’s acquisitions of L.5.-based Diagnostic Products Corporation and

Bayer Diagnostics are moving us into the new, highly attractive growth seg-

ment of in-vitro diagnosticrs. Once both acquisitions have heen finalized,

we'll occupy an excellent s"tartfing position on a par with the No. 2 global
provider. These two acquis[itio_ns will also make Med the world's first sup-
plier to deliver products, systems and services across the entire healthcare
continuum, from preventi('fm and diagnosis to treatment and follow-up
care. Since IT plays a key n:)le in integrating clinical workflows, increasing
efficiency and lowering costs, Med’s leading global position in healthcare

IT will give it an additional|competitive edge.

a The decision to put our tel zcommunications carrier business into a 50-50
joint venture with Nokia w%as not easy. After weighing all the options,
however, this seemed to be the best way to remain a leading supplier of
telecommunications infrastructure given the dramatic changes now taking
place in the world market. Size is a critical factor for manufacturers and
providers of telecommunications solutions and services. This new joint
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venture will give us the critical mass and financial'clout we need in order
to compete successfully. We're convinced that Nokia Siemens Networks
has excellent prospects of becoming a global Ieader in its market. Steps
to cornplete the mtegratmn and start operation in the second quarter of
fiscal 2007 are underway.,

. )

In addition to these Jvajor portfolio moves, we made a number of small-
er 'acquis;itions that will further strengthen our position in the industrial
automation and power markets. Our restructuring measures — including all
acquisitions, divestmentls and joint ventures — affectlled some 30 percent of
our businesses in fiscal 2006. We're pleased to have successfully completed
this formidable task.

We're deeply concerned about developments at our former mobile
phone business, now part of the Taiwanese company BenQ. In September
2006, the company filed for bankruptcy for its mobile phone business in
Germany and other couptrles causing a public outcry in Germany in
partlcular The filing tooar us by surprise, above all, because we were con-
vinced we had chosen a good partner for our moblle phone business and
because we had purposely strengthened BenQ's posmon by providing
financing and by transferring patent and brand rights. We've now launched
a variety of measures to facilitate job placement for our former employees.
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Our Groups are achieving ﬁ’rofiltable growth. |
All our Groups — with the exc‘eptlon of Siemens Business Services — report-
ed strong growth in fiscal 20106, with six operating Groups achieving a dou-
ble-digit percentage lncrpase in new orders. In many of our businesses,
we're winning market share from our competitors. Automation and Drives
(A&D), Medical Solutions (Mud),lS|emens VDO Automotive (5V), Power
Transmission and Distributior (PTD) and OSRAM reached their target mar-
gins every quarter, while InsttriaI Solutions and Services (1&S), Siemens
Bu!ldung Technologies (SBT), rransportatlon Systems (TS) and Siemens Bu5|-
ness Services (SBS) are closmg |n on their profitability goals. We're confi-
dent that all our Groups will leach their target margins by the second quar-
ter of 2007. In the months ahead, we'll focus on continuing to improve our
Groups' profitability and rnairlltailhing these margin levels in the long term.

The second pillar of the Fit[4Mpre program — Operational Excellence —
comprises the proven tools of the Siemens Management System {SMS},
including our Company-wide.prolgrams Innovation, Customer Focus and
Global Competitiveness and (|§ur topt initiative, with which we've been
continuously optimizing our business processes for ten years now.

Half of our sales growth isI organic and this achievement is a testimony
to our power of innovation. 'I]o further boost our technolegical edge, we
invested €5.7 billion in researlch and development in fiscal 2006 (see also
page 34 - 35 of this Report). %\nd this investment is paying off. In fiscal
2006, our researchers submi}rted more than 10,000 invention reports,
roughly 17 percent more than in-fiscal 2005. We filed patent applications
for over 6,000 of these |nven]t|ons about eight percent more than in the
previous year. Qur portfolio now,comprises more than 62,000 patents.

11
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é We're bundling our product}s to create sector-specific solutions.

In fiscal 2006, we set up a number of cross-Group Sector Development

Boards to offer solutions Pveh better tailored to our customers’ specific

requirements. At BMW's Lelp; ig facullty, for example we supplied automa-

: tion and manufacturing solutions for the bedy shop, paint shop and final

i assembly system. We also pr("»vid;ed the plant’s power supply, communica-
tions and IT systems, its building.infrastructure and all related services.

i Employee know-how and te-arﬁwork are key competitive advantages.
Our technological and entreplren:eurial success is based on the superb col-
laboration of our excellent erpployees worldwide. Given the breakneck
speed at which markets are c-1anfging, the expertise and teamwork of our
people are a source of Iong-Eernﬁ competitive advantages. That's why
People Excelience — our third Fit4More pillar — is so important to us. The
aim of our activities in this ar(*a |s to foster a high-performance culture
across the entire Company. Successful People Excellence measures include
our newly restructured Siemens Leadership Excellence (SLE) program,
which is providing our managers with the knowledge they’ll need to meet.
the challenges of the future. n SLE courses, top Siemens executives share
their experiences and practic:lll krlaow how with the next generation of
Company |leaders. Our abilityjto recogmze and nurture these top talents
early on is also a decisive factor in our success.

Unparalleled technology k!lwow—how and outstanding innovations are the
lifeblood of our Company. Thiit's why we want to be an attractive employer
for top scientists and engineers worldwide. To achieve this goal, we've
introduced a special career track ifor technology experts — separate from
that for our managerial employeés — with four main stages, from senior-
level to chief engineer. |
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Our activities in the areas‘pf sustainability and environmental protection
were honored once again th'is year. We're proud to have been listed on the
Dow lones Sustainability |nd;ax for the seventh year in a row.

We aim to be a good neighbor in all the countries where we do business,
With our global presence, wfle can marshal local resources everywhere in
the world to provide fast an(il effective assistance in emergencies and natu-
ral disasters. For example, Sizmens Caring Hands, our charitable program,
contributed more than €1.5|million in monetary and non-monetary dona-
tions for the victims of the e;artﬁquake in Pakistan on October 8, 2005, Fol-
lowing the Indonesian earth Juake of May 2006, we provided aid primarily
in the form of medical equipment.

Our network of universityl partnerships now encompasses more than
600 institutions of higher education in 70 countries. Partners include presti-
gious institutions like Massatl'ihusetts Institute of Technology, the University
of California at Berkeley, OxfardWUniversity, ETH Zurich, Tokyo University,
Tsinghua University in Beijing, T@ngji University in Shanghai and leading
universities throughout Gerr'wany.

In fiscal 2006, our Fit4Mose program paved the way for continued prof-
itable growth at twice the rate Qf the global economy. To reach this goal,
we've expanded and restruclured many of our businesses. Our achieve-
ments in fiscal 2006 - reflecied in our bottom line — are providing an excel-
lent springboard for further tuccess in fiscal 2007.

Dr. Klaus Kleinfeld |
President and Chief Executive Officer, |
Siermens AG |
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Fit4More — T
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wa] for.long-term growth in our
shaIre value by captunng or closing
in,dn Ieadmg positions in all our

may
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tional Excellence, People Excel-

leh
=

approach to enhancing our Com-
parny’s producuwty and value, Per-
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tional Excellence implements
oun Company -wide topt program
rigg rously and with a clear focus

an

Exoellence sets the highest stand-
ards for selecting, evaluating,

led
em

Launched in April 2005, our
Fit4 More program has set clear

iThe four Fit4More pillars - Per-

]
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!
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e basis fo
future
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Is and defined the measures
Lired to accelerate our strategic
Fientation and (ay the basis for
tainable, profitable growth.

ve aready accomplished a

In partlr.ular, wa've paved the

kets worldwide.
mance and Portfolio, Opera-

te and Corporate Responsibility
bmprise a comprehensive

nance and Portfolio defines the
hs necessary for creating a port
b that will enable us to achieve
Lainable profitable growth at
re the global GDP rate. Qpera-

busmess performance. People

dmg and developing our
ployees. And Corporate

|
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Responsibility ensures that -~ in the
areas of corporate governance,
busmess practices, sustamabu!lty
and corporate citizenship — we're a
gaod neighbor in all the countries
where we do business,

6n the home stretch
Performance and Portfolio: We've
found satisfactory solutions for the
reahgnment of our 1&C business
area and our L&A Group. Targeted
acquisitions and divestments in
fiscal 2006 have brought us much
closer to reaching our target
margms and achieving a growth
rate double that of the global
economy

! Ta reach these goals and remain
successful over the long term,
we're rigerously implementing
our three Fit4More drivers:
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- FitdMore - Ourbrdfj:t and growth p'rc;gram"sim‘:'_eApriI 2005 - 1

Performance
and Portfolio

1 Solve Mobile Devices
1 Finalize strategic reorien-
tation of I1&C (Cam, SBS)

1 Strategic reorientatian of « Innovatian }' I Extellence Program
L&A ' + Customer Foc Js % Increase glabal talent pool
¥ Reach target margins in « Global Compétitiveness  d Strengthen experi careers
a\l Groups W
3 Build portfolio for 2x
waorld GOP growth

.

Operational Excelience: We've
refined our methods and sharp-
ened our focus on Innovation,
Customer Focus and Global
Competitiveness,

+ People Excellence: We've estab-
lished a high-performance cul-
ture throughout our Company.
Based on clear performance
goals, this culture enables our
people to realize their full
potential. To increase our glob-
al talent pool, weTe fostering
tatented young people world-
wide, We've created new career
tracks for experts and ~ since
world-class managers are the
key to world-class results —
redesigned cur management
development program.
Corporate Responsibility: To
safeguard our long-term future,
we're continuing to honar our
commitments to business suc-
cess, ethical conduct, environ-
mental protection and the wel-
fare of society.

Operational
Excellence

R .
i People
|

Excellence

culture
1 Establish Leadership

L4 -
Imp Iemgnlalion by April 2007

Ojtlook .

Quir Fit4More standards and
processes are timeless elements
ot'goo:d company management.
W2l continue to employ these

kg'y management tools even after

the program ends in April 2007,

Corporate
Responsibility

!
¥ Execute Siemer s Manage- 1§ Achieve high-performance B Achieve best-in-¢lass in:
ment System (ppweqed
by top*) wvith focus on:

+ Corporate governance
« Business practices

* Sustainability

» Corparate citizenship

Our goals will also remain
unchanged: to focus our portfolio
on growth and to be as profitable
as our most successful competi-
tors, As a result, active, targeted
portfolio management will contin-
ue to be a vital part of our Compa-
ny strategy.

FitdMore

clear drivers
1]

' Drivers

iy .
.| Operational Excellence
‘ powered by top*

' People Excellence

Corporate Responsibility

i
l

A comprehensive and logically structured program with clear goals and

Goals
Performance and Portfalio |
by April 2007 !
* Reach target margins in !
all Groups '
* Build portfolio for 2x global GDP
igrowth ' .
+ Strategic reorientation of 1&C
and L&A :
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Strategic portfolio development
We want to occupy leading posi-
tions in all our markets. That's the
only way we can ensure continued
profitability when the going gets
tough. In areas where we don't
have the resources to do this on
our own, we endeavor to find
strong partners. For example,
we're now in the process of fold-
ing our Communications Group’s
carrier business into a joint ven-
ture with Nokia. The new compa-
ny, Nokia Siermens Networks, will
be a telecommunications power-
house with good prospects for
capturing the No. 1 position in its
market, The sale of our mobile
handset activities, the sale of the
product-related services business
of Siemens Business Services to
Fujitsu Siemens Computers, and
the restructuring of our Logistics
and Assembly Systems Group
were also key steps in the strate-
gic development of our portfolio.
We're strengthening the busi-
nesses of our market-leading
Groups through both acquisitions

FitdMore
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and organic growth. Qur acquisi-
tnons of Bayer Diagnostics and the
Dl-lgnostlc Products Corparation
wi | make our Medical Solutions
Gr,)up the world’s first provider of
|ntegrated diagnostics.

[The acquisition of Electrium has
mude our Automation and Drives
Gri)up one of the UK’s leading
pruv:ders of electrical installation
sy‘ tems and increased our access
to key Middle East markets.
Ac]umng Wheelabrator, the
Advanced Burner Group and the
te: hnology and engineering activ-
me 5 of the Sustec Group has fur-
th«-r expanded our Power Genera-
t|on Group's product and service
po itfolio in the growing market
for .eco-friendly power genera-
'ncn With its acquisitions of CNC
Water Technologies, Sernagiotto
Tet thnologies and Moncsep Cor-
po ‘atioh, our Industrial Solutions

ani Services Group can now offer
complete solutions for the entire
water and wastewater treatment
se(tor And the acquisition of
VA Tech has given us additional

What does Siemens
expect from its acquisi-
tions of Diagnostic
Products Corporation and
Bayer Diagnostics?

y) These acquisitions will
rmake our Medical Solu-
tions Group the world’s first
provider of integrated diag-
nostics - combining imag-
ing diognostics, faboratory

diagnostics and clinical
information technology
under one roof. The resuft-
ing efficiencies will enable
our customers to consider-
ably increase the quality of
the healthcare they provide
while cutting clinicol and
administrative costs. The
acquisitions will also make
Medico! Sofutions the No. 2
provider of immunodiag-
nostics worldwide.
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What does the acquisition

of Wheelabrator Alr Pollution
Control, Inc, mean for
Siemens? '

@ Wheelabrator’s products and
systems for momtormg and

-reducing the emissions of coal-

fired power plonts will enable
us to help our customers meet
their power needs with highly

.efficient, cost-effective and eco-

friendly solutions. © T

!

Highlights -

Acquisitions in fiscal 2006

« Kiihnle, Kopp 8 Kausch*.{Germany)
will boost Pawer Generation's product
portfolio in the industry sector.

+ Bayer Diagnostics* and Diagnostic
Products Corporation {U.5.) will
strengthen Medical Solutions’ position
in the growth markets for molecular
diagnostics and immunodiagnostics.

« The technology and engineering activi-
ties of the Sustec Group {Switzerland)
have expanded Power Generations
power plant business to mclude prod-
ucts and sotutigns for coal gasification.

+ Electrium (UK) has boosted Automation
and Drives' position in electrical installa-
tion technotogy in the UK,

« Wheelabrator Air Pollution Control, Inc.
and Advanced Burner Technologies. Inc.
{US.) have extended Power Genera-
tion's array of emission-reducing prod-
ucts and services.

« CNC Water Technologies, Ine. (China),
Sernagiotto Technologies S.p.A. (ltaly)
and Monosep Corporation (U.5.) have
enabled Industrial Solutions and Ser-
vices to round out its range of solutions
for water and wastewater treatment.

* Initiated

100
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xpertise in the metallurgy field
ile enablmg us to expand our
dmg 'position in the growth
rkets of Central and Eastern
ufope = where we're now driving
wsnlldatuon in the power trans-
sslon and distribution sector.

By contmumg to strengthen

T pusmon in key future markets
boosted our sales 16 percent
Fiscal 2006.

On track for long-term
profltahlhty

OQur goal is to achieve high prof-
itability as well as growth. All
our Groups are obligated to reach
theur target margins = not just
once but also over the long term.
Even those that haven't yet suc-
teeded have shown substantial
improvement. We're confident
that all our Groups will be on
target by the end of the second
quarter of fiscal 2007,
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in eufos “ \l 2066“’ . 20057
Stock price range (XETRA closing prices, Frankfurt)

Wigh T T e s
Low o 60.08 56.20
Year-e_nd N - ) T s sat0

Number of shares (year—end in mllilons-‘ 891 891

Markekt capitalization (year-end, in mitliyns of eures)® 61,307 57,118

Per-share data

Earnings per share®

Earnings per share (fully diluted)¥

Dividend

Investor refations

Siemens maintains a continuous
and open dialogue with its inves-
tors. We provide comprehensive
financial information to our share-
holders at the Annual Sharehold-
ers’ Meeting, in quarterly and
annual reports, and in ad hoc press
releases. Our Investor Relations
Team also organizes conferences
and conference calls at which
investors and financial analysts can
discuss current Company-related
issues with our management.
These conferences and conference
calls are accessible to the general
public via live Internet transmis-
sion. For private investors in
particular, we've redesigned and
expanded our Internet sites. We've
also held several hundred one-on-
one talks, including roadshows,
with institutional investors in and
outside Germany to keep them
up-to-date on Company develop-
ments, Sustainability-oriented
investors have shown an increas-
ing interest in the Company's strat-
egy in areas like energy efficiency.
in fiscal 2006, we were listed

on the Climate Leadership Index
of the Carbon Disclosure Project
{CDP) for the second time and on
the SAM Dow Jones Sustainability
Index for the seventh yearina
row.

| ™ Fiscal year from October 1 to September 30
. EX} 3.29 41 Dn the basis of autstanding shares
\ - " On the basis of tontinuing operations
1.45® 1.35 “! Ta be proposed at the Annual Shareholders’
N . Meeting

In a number of major surveys,
investars and analysts ranked
Slemens capital market commu-
nications No. 1 again in fiscal
2|)06 For further information,
please visit the following Web

si ‘es:

wWiww.siemens.com/

i vestorrelahons
www.siemens.com/governance

T
ot 1, 2005 Sept. 30, 2006

W Siemens BN Dow joney STCxX® BN DAX®

Tlle Slemens share
A- of September 30, 2006, the
Cc p|tal stock of Siemens AG
tctaled approxnmate!y €2.7 bil-
licin, representing some 891
mllllon no-par value shares in
reglstered form. Each share has
oile vote,

|:on September 30, 2006,
Siimens shares were listed on
al|German stock exchanges,
the Milan stock exchange and
st :ck exchanges in New York,
Lc ndon and Zurich.

| On the New York Stock
Ex change, Siemens shares are
tr.lded in the form of American
Duposntary Receipts (ADRs), wit
ore ADR corresponding to one
Sirmens share.

:’
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Our Company-wide top* programs
- Innovation, Customer Focus and
Global Competitiveness — are safe-
guarding our long-term success
and enabling us to compete in
ever tougher markets.

At Stemens, innovation is about
more than just developing new
technologies. It's about transform-
ing ideas into market successes.,
New service and business models
ensure that customers will contin-
ue to view us as a strang partner
and a market leader well into the
future. Benefiting from our pres-
ence in diverse regions around the
world, we're increasingly driving
R&D activities geared to markets
outside Eyrope and the United
States. For example, we've devel-
oped computed tomography scan-
ners, control systems and medi-
um-voltage switchgear specifically
for the Asian market.

We intend to leverage our global
presence and broad portfolio even
more intensively to create com-
plete solutions tailored to particu-
lar customer needs, Our Siemens
CGne initiative bundles the ex-
pertise of all our businesses by
strengthening cooperaticn across
our entire organization. Using this
approach, we helped Qatar’s Doha
Airport avert capacity problems
during the 15th Asia Games, held

Fit4More ‘ 25

inDecember 2006. In less than
fcur momhs time, we set upa
fully eqmpped temporary airport
termsnal to handle increased pas-
se nger volumes during the event.
another Siemens One project,
w=ve developed a control center
that is'setting new standards for
safety in road tunnels. The center’s
modular platform solution can be
atlapted to meet individual cus-
tcmer requirements in many coun-
tres.
fThe more open our markets be-
ccme,jithe mare crucial it is to be
gl:ubally competitive all along the
vi lue chain. That's why we're con-
t|||ually optimizing processes to
fu rther strengthen our businesses
W thin'existing structures. We're
successfully bundling and harmo-
ni rmg Lompany-wide accounting,
fintancial, human resources, pro-
CL‘ rement and Ioglsncs processes.
Another key focus is the steady
mr provernent of manufacturing
processes Standard platforms like
ou'r uniform production-optimiza-
ticn system are enabllng our
pl Ints to substantially increase
thelr effluency For example, at a
fa |I|ty operated by Siamens Build-
|n; Technologles the system’s in-
trud uction quickly boosted produc-
t|\I ity by around 20 percent,
i

|
t
'

i

'

)

i

“As part of our top* pro-
gram, we've established
uniform, Company-wide
processes with clear
goals, clear measures
and clear consequences.
We've giso developed a
broad range of exceflent
top™ tools to help our
businesses master the
challenges they face.”

Prof. Dr. laus Wucherer,
Corporate Executive
Committee member
responsible for the top*
program
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Achieving a high-performance
culture

A high-performance culture is
one in which employees measure
themselves against the best of the
best, accept personal responsibili-
ty and strive to excel. Only if our
people are highly qualified and
intensely committed can we offer
world-class products, services and
selutiens.

At Siemens, we create a work-
ing environment in which every
employee knows exactly what is
expected of him or her. We pro-
vide regular feedback so that our
people can develop their potential
to the fullest. Based on a clear
evalyation of individuat perform-
ance and results, we define specif-
ic career opportunities and deter-
mine appropriate compensation
for every employee. We offer our
people excellent career prospects
at 3 world-class company.

Siemens’ global Performance
Management Process is a powerful
tool for appraising employee per-
formance in terms of carefully
defined criteria and nurturing the
talented young people who will
one day lead our Company. It
enables us to evaluate the skills
and achievements of individuals
at all our Groups, Regional Compa-
nies and Corporate Units. Once
we‘ve identified the strengths of
our top talents and key experts,

we can implement the develop-
rr. 'ent measures that will best
efjuip them to leverage their
unique know-how and capabilities
fc 14 the benefit of our customers
aid mvestors.

fone key element of this rigor-
oiis high-performance culture
|5' 'our system of performance-
o] iented compensation for senior
nianagers All decisions regarding
rranagerlal compensation are
bi |sed 10N a transparent and uni-
fcrm evaluation procedure that
t: kes inte account not only busi-
nlt=ss success but also factors like
pﬂrsonal leadership qualities, cus-
tc-mer satisfaction, process excel-
lence and cooperative networking
wnhm Siemens.

tr creasmg our global talent pool
th top talents are people who
hitve great potential and who
cnnmstently produce cutstanding
re sults These are the future lead-
ets of Siemens - the individuals
who will be responsible for safe-
guardmg our future and ensuring
that we remain a market leader in
all our business areas. Qur ability
tc| recogmze and nurture top tal-
ents early on is a decisive factor
in'our success,

Hiin addition to being highly moti-
vited themselves, excellent em-
proyees inspire others to produce
world class results. They're willing

Fit4Maore 2 7

How dous Siemens
motivate its employees?

Q) We ‘engage in'open
diglogue with our

employees concerning

their goals, achieve-

ments and:prospects

for further career devel-

opment. The photo

shows Siemens employ-

" egs.at a Company facility
in Minich, Germany.

Employee qualifications

University degrees

Vocational iraining
or apprentic eships
156,100 - 33%

173,000 = 36%
of which 113,500
are in engineering
or the sciences

Unreiated
qualifications or
no prior training
145.800 - 31%

New hires

+ In fiscal 2006, Siemens hired
75,200 employees worldwide,
36 percent of whom hold uni-
versity degrees,

« About 60 percent of our univer-
sity-trained new hires are scien-
tists or engineers, As these
figures attest, we continue to
boast an exceptionally well-
qualified workforce.
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What does "high- performance cullure

really mean?

“Let me give you a concretle example.

We ot Med set out to'Hiildithe best
magnetic reSonance ta mography scan-
ners in the world. All dur processes were
carefully designed to‘c chiéve-this goal.
The devices we develobed are now mar-
ket leaders. Intensive gnd open commu-
nication within the teqm at every stoge
of the project was me key 10 our SUCCESS.
For me, o high-perfofmance culture is
one in which efficient processes yield
world-closs results.” |+

Dr. Robert Krieg, Head of Molecular
tmaging, Siemens Medical Solutions

¢

I

to make difficult decisions and
take personal responsibility for
the consequences of their actions.
We offer these people challenging
and rewarding careers,; foster their
personal development and groom
them for future |leadership posi-
tions within the Company.

Siemens’ glcbal management
team demonstrates a strong per-
sonal involvement in cultivating
our high potentials. Members of
the Managing Board regularly
hold interactive Web conferences
with our top talents, giving partici-
pants the opportunity to discuss
important Company-related issues
directly with our executive man-
agers. In addition, our next-gener-
ation leaders from around the
world regularly meet personally
with President and CEO Klaus
Kleinfeld. !

t

Imgroving career pr'ospects for
scig ntists and engineers

We ea technology leader in

ma hy areas And that's essential
dayls business environment,
re companies that fail to

ch new products in time are
lely punished. Our technolo-
adarship depends on having
le with the know-how, dedi-
tibn and persistence to drive
vation even when the going
tough That's why we've

can channel all their energy into
developing innovations. They're
nd longkr required to deal with
the orgamzauonal duties typically
par orrned at management level,
An ntense focus on their areas
of|s emaluzallon enables these
exp rtsrto create the products

an solutions that will benefit our
r.us omers and investors tomor-
Durlng fiscal 2006, we iden-
d and designated key experts
alll etop to middle-manage-
me trevels in promising high-

ndmg our network of experts
| rderlto maintain our unparal-
technology know-how — the
kn -how that spawns the out-
sta ding innovations indispensa-
ble or success in the global mar-
ket lace.

Establishing leadership
excellence
Siemens Leadership Excellence
(SLE) is our program to prepare
our managers for the challenges
of 1oday and tomorrow. WeTe
con\nnced that first-class results
can be achieved only through
first-class management. In a cor-
porate culture that fosters and
rewards top performance, our
managers are the trailblazers.

| Our SLE program prepares
managers for their future roles
very concretely by I|nk|ng ,
Siemens-specific topics to man-
agement methods and Ieadershlp
skiils.

| The principles behind the SLE
curriculum - “leaders develop
léaders" and “interactive learning”
~'account for the extraordinary
nature of the training that the
program provides. "Leaders devel-
op leaders” means that top execit-
tives, |nc|udmg Managang Board
members partiicipate in SLE
courses sharing their experiences
with course participants and even
enrolling in seminars themselves,
“Interactive learning” is also a
key component of SLE offerings.
Presented with challenging situa-
tions, individuals demonstrate
their management skills and then
receive direct feedback from fel-
low participants and coaches. In
workshops with world-renowned
experts, they also learn new tech-




niques for achieving management
excellence. The SLE program
targets our entire management
team - from senior executives to
entry-level managers — because
we believe that responsible lead-
ership is not the exclusive domain
of top management, but a bind-
ing obligation for every leader in
our Company.

One primary objective of the
SLE program is to implement
Company-wide leadership stand-
ards and values to ensure that
all our managers comply with a
uniform standard of conduct. The
program also provides uniform
managerment tools and intro-
duces new leadership methods
and strategies. By implementing
SLE, we're building a global lead-
ership network extending across
all our Groups and Regional Com-
panies, a network whose mem-
bers share information and expe-
riences 1o strengthen the entire
management team,

Since the program was
launched in October 2005, more
than 80 percent of cur Company's
top executives have attended SLE
courses. Worldwide, more than
250 managers have completed
the pregram, and the feedback
from participants has been over-
whelmingly positive. SLE is prov-
ing to be a key tool for creating
and maintaining a high-perform-
ance culture at Siemens.

Wnr!dwuje vocational training
pmgrams
We ve been intensely involved in
plowdlng vocational training for
many years, About 9,600 young
pvople are currently enrolled in
our vocational training and work-
stde programs, including 7,100
fmm Siemens and 2,500 from
other companies. We offer a
cc mprehenswe range of training
plograms preparing partlupants
far new types of jobs in business
a(lmlnlstratlon information tech-
nulogy, metalworkmg and
el=ctr1cal engineering. In addition,
w2 sponsor special programs for
hlgh school graduates and work-
st L adly programs for university stu-
dints.t

| 'siemens is exporting its dual
w ark-study system, which com-
hlpes theory and practice, to
many of its Regional Companies
araund the world. Qutside Ger-
many about 4,200 young people
are currently enroiled in Siemens
af'prenticeship programs, which
héwve been adapted to country-
specmc requirements. These pro-
giams enable us to maintain an
outstandmg workforce, which in
turn contributes to the h|gh quali-

ty {of olur products and services.
1
I

+

|
!
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Employees worldwide

Geemany
161,100 = 34%

Eurgpe
{axcluding Germany)

127,400 = 27%

The Amaricas
104,100 = 21%

Asia-Pacific

69,800 = 15%

Africa, Middle East,
(ALY

12,500 = 3%

irh

Employees worldwide

In fiscal 2006, we had 474,900
empioyees around the world —
14,100 more than the year before.
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Based an innovative, future-ori- -
ented products, efficient process-
es and responsible company
management, our sustainahility
strategy is making a major contri-
bution to increasing our Compa-
ny's long-term vatue, At Siemens,
sustainable company manage-
ment means increasing the value
of the Siemens share by ensuring
lasting profitability and continu-
ously boosting growth and per-
formance. Corporate responsibility
- which encompasses corporate
governance, business practices,
sustainability and corporate citi-
zenship - is one of the four main
piltars of our Fit4More program,
which addresses the global capital
market’s growing interest in sus-
tainable investment.

Our inclusion on the Dow Jones
Sustainability Index (DJSI) is a
testimony to our achievements,
We've been listed on the index
every year since its launch in 1999
- and, as a rule, near the top.

Corporate governance
Corporate governance - clearly
structured and rigorously imple-
mented — has a long tradition at
Siemens. For us, good corporate
governance includes not only the
responsible and value-creating
management and monitering of
Company activities but also the ef-
fective cooperation of our Manag-
ing and Supervisory Boards, close

i
altention to the interests of our
sharehalders, transparency and
re sponsibility. For a detailed de-
stription of corporate governance
al Suemens see pages 46 ff. of this
Ruporlt

Business practices
“ 1tegrity guides our conduct
toward our employees, business
p.nrtners and shareholders.” This
statement — one of our Corporate
Principles - sums up our commit-
ment to comply with the highest
ethical and legal standards in all
our entrepreneurial activities.
Uambiguous instructions from
Company management to all
enployees to obey the law and
a clear warning that unlawful
actions will not be tolerated
aie the basis of compliance at
S|=mens These instructions are
fcrmulated in our Business Con-
duct Guidelines. As the center-
plece of the Siemens Compliance
Pre ogram the Guidelines are bind-
mg rules for all employees world-
wide. They comprise nat just a
guneral admonition to employees
c'obey the law but also specific
riles regarding, among other
thlngs compliance with competi-
tmn and anti-corruption laws, the
hiindling of donations, the prohi-
bition 'of insider trading and the
plotectmn of Company assets. The
Cumphance Program also includes
_ode of £thices for Financial Mat-
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. Whai's_sierﬁens"i:osition.
on'the UN Global Compact?

Siemerts has been @ mem-

ber of the UN Global Com-
pact, launched by Secremry
General Kofi Annan, since
2003. The Compact’s princi-
ples-have long been mtegrm"
parts of our company cufture.
We've committed ourselves to
helping achieve the Compact’s
development goals both now
.and in the future,

.

ters, Business Consultant Guide-
lines, and a large number of other
Company-wide regulations.

Our Compliance Program is
being continuously developed and
improved 1o meet new legal
requirements and eliminate any
shortcomings that investigations
may reveal. For example, at the
end of September 2006, we
launched a new training program:
a comprehensive, interactive online
compliance course that, in a first
step, must be completed by all sen-
ior Siemens executives in Germany,
In response to recent events, we
immaediately introduced further
measures. To supplement existing
internal reporting and complaints
procedures, we established a new
communications channel via an
external ombudsman. Employees
and third parties can contact this
neutral individual anonymously
and on a confidential basis to
report any irregular business prac-
tices that come to their attention
within the Company. We also set up
a special taskforce headed by the
Chief Compliance Officer to pro-
pose additional measures to put an
end to any lapses on the part of
individuals.

Imptementation of the Siemens
Compliance Program is handled by
a worldwide compliance organiza-
tion comprising a Chief Compliance
Officer, who reports directly to the
Corporate Executive Committee
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Eco-excellence - |

Exemplary solutions |

+ Buildings: & smart combination of
building technologies and  facility man-
agement can yield average energy sav-
ings ~ particularly in ¢limate control
systems — of 20 percent per customer
project. i

« Logistics: Hybrid drives technology
reduces fuel consumption in RTG con-
tainer cranes from 18 - 25 liters to
8- 10 liters per hour of operatlon

» Medical technology: The SOMATOM
Definition computed tomography scan-
ner cuts energy consumption by up te
30 percent per exammatlon and radia-
tion dosages by up to 50 percent per
heart scan. It also contains 80 percent
less fead and delivers better image
quality than comparable devices.

+ Mass transit: Our power storage tys-
tem reduces primary energy consump-
tion in direct-current rail systems by
up to 20 percent.

» Power generation: New gas turhine
and power plant technoldgies cut
fuel cansumption and emissians and
increase efficiency. For example, a
power plant incorporating these tech-
nologies and slated for construction
in Irsching, Germany will emit nine
percent less CO= than comparable
facilities.

and|the Audrt Committee of the
Supervisory Board, and Compliance
Offiters[in the Groups and Regions}
whg report to the Chief Compli-
anc Officer and are responsible
for mplementmg the Program in
their respective areas. The Chief
Compliance Officer is also support-
edbya Comphance Office staffed
by legal’ specrallsts .

{ To admln!ster the Siemens.

Con phance Program we've estab- -
lished, among other things, moni-
toring procedures for individual
busjnesses; syslemat:c and ad hoc
audits, an'accountmg complaints
pro 'edure and mandatory internal
reporting processels

Su. amatllllty

Ch Ilenges ang opportunities !
Climate change is one of the great-
est hallenges facing manking,
requiring the full attention of gov-
ern emslsocrety and industry. The
rapid warmlng of our planet will
rsely affecl living conditions
an economrc development in

ma ycountnes And its impact
will|be exacerbated by increasing
urb) mzatlon worldwrde

ut the r measures needed to
redlice climate change also harbor
new opportunities.- particularly
for b technology powerhouse like
Siemens, whose energy-saving
systems help cut climate-relevant
emissions, n|mprove energy efficien-

i
i .

Further information on corporate
responsrbrllty at Siemens
is available at:

Corporate responsibility
www.siemens.com/responsibility

UN Global Compact

www siemens. com/g]obo!compact
Corporate governance

www siemens.comi/governance . v
Busmess practices

www siemens. com!busmesspracuces
Suslalnablllty

www siemens.com/sustainability |
Corporate citizenship ;
www.siemens.com/citizenship

cy and conserve natural resources. :
We've been quick to recognize .
these apportunities, With our eco-
excellence praducts, in particular,
we've also begun to leverage the
growth potential they hold for
mfrastructure providers. Qur
repeated listing on the Climate
Leadership Index of the Carbon
Disclosure Project (CDP} is further
testsmony to the suctess of our
strategy

Resource efficiency and
environmental management
Qur FitdMore Best-in-Class in
Sustainability program — based on
the worldwide Siemens Environ-
mental Information System — is
ancreasmg our resource efficiency
and enhancing the performance of
our environmental management
system. We've also launched an
energy-efficiency program at our
100 largest preduction facilities.
Our goal is to cut primary energy
consumption 20 percent by 2010.

Supply chain

Sustainability applies to every link
in the value chain. From our suppli-
ers, we expect transparency, effi-
ciency and compliance with key
international standards — and

our customers expect exactly the
same from us. By registering on
our click2procure buy-side market-
place, some 5,000 suppliers have
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“How did- Slemens help the ctlms
‘of the tsunaml of 20045’ ) +
i @ To'cite. one example of ou mvolve- :

Y mént, we coopéerated withja num- . '
L . ‘ber of partner organizations|pn:the . '

- construcnon ofa. commumnit

- located in_one of the region

* hit by ‘the tsunami: Indig’s s

state of Tamil Nadu, whére
. 10,000 people were killed a

disaster, life‘in Thenampatti
largely returned to normal.

f
il

-0 medical clinic and housingjin
Thenumpattmam This tmyv age'is

160,000 dwellings were destloyed.
Today, oyearand g hu.'f aftq

enter

ardest
thwest
er

the
m has

agreed to comply with our stand-
ards. We continually review these
requirements and adjust them
when necessary.

Corporate citizenship

We take a proactive and long-term
approach to corporate citizenship.
Siemens Generation21, for instance,
is making a major contribution to
sustainable development world-
wide by bundling our educational
projects and initiatives to enhance
the oppaortunities of young people
all around the globe, The program
focuses primarily on the natural sci-
ences and technology - two main
drivers of progress — and on foster-
ing top talents in those areas.
Siemens Caring Hands, our second
global citizenship program, is con-
tributing to the long-term improve-
ment of living conditions in all the
countries where we do business.
Employee volunteering is also an
important focus of Siemens Caring
Hands.

Our corporate citizenship pro-
grams are contributing to our fang-
term success by strengthening
our reputation as a good neighbor
worldwide.

Siemens Generation21
Preschools: To give tomorrow's
researchers a head start in under-
standing the phenomena of our
world, we're providing children

with a chance to learn about sci-
ence and technolugy at a very ear-
Iy age The experiment kits that
we've begun distributing to many
preschools around the world
e')able mini-scientists to experl-
ment with electricity, sound, air
.'|d water in ways that are fun and
geared to their capabllmes
Schoois: We're giving young peo-
ple new insights into the fascinat-
mg worlds of the natural sciences,
uchnology and economics and
e 1couragmg them to pursue
c.lreers in these fields. Qur school
c-:ntests prizes, awards and schol-
a sh|ps motivate talented students
m be true high achievers. We sup-
p:\rt teachers by developing and
d stnbutlng innovative, award-win-
n ng educational materials. A wide
runge of Siemens school partner-
slups provide the basis for long-
te rm cooperation with teachers
and students.
UnIVETSIt!ES' We've also made a
I ajor commitment to excellence
|n[h|gher education. Through part-
n|=rsh|ps joint projects, awards,
s holarships and mentoring pro-
grams, we foster gifted unnversnty
students in the natural sciences
aid engineering so that they can
re alize their full potential at an ear-
Iy age. Qur university projects also
biing us into contact with the
managers, decision-makers and
movers and shakers of tomorrow.

Siemens Caring Hands

Social giving: We provide financial
assistance to charitable organiza-
tions and projects worldwide. Since
2003, we've supported an array of
UNICEF programs. Working with the
organization, we've enabled 35,000
gitls in Afghanistan to resume their
education. Seme 1,800 Siemens
emplayees are now project spon-
sors. Since July 2006, we've also
been supporting UNICEF's Schools
for Africa campaign.

Disaster relief: We contribute tech-
nical equipment and - together with
our employees — donations to assist
reconstruction in regions devastated
by natural disasters. Following the
Indonesian earthquake of May 2006,
for example, we helped restore local
infrastructures and provided victims
with food, clothing and medical
assistance.

Volunteering: All around the world,
Siemens employees are strengthen-
ing their local communities through
a wide range of voluntary activities.
Support for employee volunteering
is a vital part of our corporate citi-
zenship strategy. Successful commu-
nity projects heighten participants’
awareness of sacial problems, foster
team spirit and underscore our com-
mitment to society.
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of customer value,
productivity and
9 U POWET
of lnnevaiion is &
dear refllection of
our conmpetitive

Streng .

Research
and development

Investments in research and
development

{investments in research and devel-
opment (R&D) are the prerequisite
for successful innovation and sus-
tainable business success. In fiscal
2006, we were once again a world
leader in R&D outlays in the electron-
ics and electrical engineering indus-
try, increasing our spending on the
development of new products, sys-
terns and solutions from €5.2 billion
to €5.7 billion, including R&D invest-
ments related to specific custormer
reguirernents.*

Nearly 50,000 Siemens employees
in 40 countries — more than 10 per-
cent of our worldwide workforce -
are employed in research and devel-
opment. Over half of our 150 R&D
locations are outside Germany,
mainly in other European countries,
North America and, increasingly,
Asia-Pacific - and the trend toward
internationalization is continuing.
Now spanning the globe, our R&D
activities are focused on regions
marked by robust market growth and
dynamic innovation. Qur internation-
al setup enables us to rapidly devel-
op new solutions for local customer
requirements and provides us with
access to alarge global talent pool.
Extensive contacts with leading uni-
versities around the world and
roughly 1,000 cooperative projects a
year with universities and research
institutes worldwide are also helping
us attract highly qualified scientists
and engineers.

Increasing globalization and the
challenges of demographic change
and urbanization are placing ever-
greater demands on R&D. By main-
taining a leading technological posi-
tion, leveraging our global presence
and implementing a rigorous patent
policy to safeguard our intellectual
property, we're helping shape the
technologies of tomorrow and
expanding our position as a leading
innovator.

* Including R&D investments retated ta specific
custamer requirements, These investments have
been reclassified into cost of sales.
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Numerous prizes and awards tes-
tify to the success of our R&D activi-
ties, For our innovative piezo fuel
injection technology, which makes
diesel and gasoline engines cleaner
and more efficient, we received the
2005 German Future Prize from the
President of Germany. In the med-
ical field, Siemens engineers have
been honored with the prestigious
German Business innovation Prize
for developing the revolutionary
total imaging matrix {TIM) technol-
ogy used in magnetic respnance
systems.
www.siemens.comfinnovation

Intellectual property worldwide
A large number of outstanding
inventions and patent applications
reflect our innovative prowess and
patent strength worldwide.

In fiscal 2006, our researchers
submitted over 10,000 invention
reports, roughly 17 percent more
than in fiscal 2005. We filed patent
applications for about two-thirds
of these innovations,

In Europe and the Americas, we
generated a double-digit percent-
age increase in patent applications
cempared to fiscal 2005. In Asia,
the expansion of our patent port-
tolio was driven by strong sales
growth and the increasing signifi-
cance of intellectual property —
particularly in China.

In fiscal 2006, we filed over 36
percent more patent applications

than the year before. Our Ieadersh|p
ill the international patent statistics
u[further testimony to our power of
ilinovation. In first-time patent appli-
cmons we're No. 1 in Germany,
ho 2 in Europe and among the top
tlin in the United States. Qur patent
portfolio comprises more than
62,000 patents worldwide.

our strong competitive position
will continue to depend not only on
tI1e creativity of our people but also
on the strategic management of our
patent portfolio. A Company- -wide,
globally oriented patent initiative is
dnwng our concerted efforts to sys-
tﬂmatlcally pratect our innovations
a-|d leverage them in the face of stiff
global competition. Patents provide
nur custorners with unrestricted
a zcess to all key markets and sup-
port the entire innovation process.

ww siemens.com/
ilitellectual_property

|
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Can Siemens technnlo-
gies-help control rising --
healthcare costs?

@ The REMIND system

developed by Dr.
Bharat Rao of Siemens
Medu:ai| Salutions is
already making an
l'mportant contribution,
By integrating disparate
healthcare information
sources and recommend-
ing appropriate treat-
ment, the system
enables heaithcare pro-
fessionols to tailor care
to potient needs and
optimize patient out-
comes.

Research and development”
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' Dear Sharehclders,

In fiscal 2006, the Supeilvisory Board focused intensively on
the Company's situatiorlu arlid prospects as well as on a num-
ber of specific issues. The Managing Board regularly provided
us with timely and comprehensive information. We were
involved in major Comp'any decisions and held six regular
and two extraordinary ineetings during the year.

W [
|

Between meetings, the Mariaging Board informed us in writing about
i important developments. A4 Chairman of the Supervisory Board, | was
: kept up-to-date on major iscues and upcoming management decisions.

' Company strategy and por, ltft'Jlio policies
In fiscal 2006, we considere[j in’ detail and -~ in cases requiring our con-
sent due to the size of the relevant transaction — approved acquisitions
of some €5.6 billian. .
Also during fiscal 2006, we discussed measures to further develop
Siemens’ business portfolio,|primarily in the area of medical solutions
and at the Communications Iand‘ Siemens Business Services Groups.
At our meeting on April 2\:5, 2006, we approved the acquisition of
' Diagnostic Products Corporaltion {DPC). This acquisition will expand our
; current portfolio in the medical solutions sector to include in-vitro diag-
nostics. :
At a special Supervisory Bpard meeting on june 17, 2006, we
4 approved the formation of a joint venture between Siemens and Nokia
H in the fixed and mobile networks sectors.
] This 50-50 joint venture, 10 be called Nokia Siemens Netwarks, is
' expected to be a feader in the té\ecommunications industry, with strong
positions in the key growth éegments of infrastructure and services for

. . |
fixed and mobile networks, = |

) . |

]
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At the same meeting,
pendent company in the
At an extraordinary Su

!
!
|
|
|
1
!
1
I
|

we approveld the formation of a legally inde-
enterprise networks sector.
Jperwsory Board meeting on June 29, 2006, we

approved the acquisition of Bayer DIaQHOStICS a world leader in clinical

chemistry and No. 1 inn
hematolo’gy.

The acquisitions of Ba
Solutions.Group {(Med) t

ear-patient testing, laboratory automation and

i l
Lrer Dlagnostlcs and DPC will make our Medical
he world S frrst integrated diagnostics company,

Lo . 1
supplying imaging and laboratory d|agnostrcs as well as clinical IT solu-
. [ .
tions across the entire vglue chaln frorn a single source,

The Su'pervisory Boar(
of Siemens Business Ser

o recewed a report on the strategic reorientation
.flces GmbH & Co. OHG (5BS). Plans call for

strengthening the Group through thcle addition of four Siemens IT and

software development ¢

omplanles Program and System Engineering

(PSE) in Austria, Siemens lnformatlon Systems Ltd. (SI5L) in India, Devel-

opment Innovation and

|
PrOJects (DIP) in Greece, and the Business Inno-

|
!
l
i
!
|
|
!
|
:
!

|
I
|
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vation Center (BIC) in Switzerland. Software and solutions know-how

that have been dispersed within the Company will now be bundled and

oriented toward Siemens’ own business activities.

At our September meetirg, the Managing Board presented an '
overview of the Company’s 5usjness strategy for our consideration.
Agreement was reached on Ithe following key issues:

a Siemens will profit over tne long term from two global megatrends:
increasing urbanization and demographic change. These two devel-
opments are posing majey cﬁa1|enges in the areas of energy, the
environment and transpcrtation. They are also generating a large
number of infrastructureiprojects and greater demand for industrial
automation and healthcare solutions.

a Siemens’ aim is to grow twicé as fast as the world economy; at least
half of our growth is to b g?nerated internally.

! .
We held our September nljee'ting at Med’s plant in Forchheim,
Germany to enable member;s to obtain first-hand, in-depth information
regarding production proce'.'\',ses and selected development projects.

|
|
!
!
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Financing and pensions
At our April meeting, we
opment of the Company"
number of acquisitions, t

‘; |

l
Lol
o
| !

. L. .
received a detailed report regarding the devel-

; quoidity and financial situation. The large
he strongfgrowth of business volume, the relat-

ed high level of capital ex penditures on property, plant and equipment,
and the associated incregse i |n non: flxed assets as well as problem areas

like the mobile phone bubi

iness and Slemens Business Services have

absorbed substantlai financial resources As a result, the Supervisory
Board authonzed the Corporate Executwe Committee to obtain up to
€9 billion in additional financing. ‘

At the same meeting,
tus of the Company’s pen
opment OT its pension fu

Group- and Region-spe
As in previous years, the

we were glen an overview of the current sta-
snon.system 'and the anticipated further devel-
nd assets.
SR
:ific‘}issu s
egular meetings of the Supervisory Board were

devoted not only to Com any- -wide matters, We also gave individual
Groups and Regional Units an opportunlty to describe their business
prospects in detail. In fis¢al 2006 he Transportation Systems Group,

the Industrial Solutions a
Middle East, India and Chi

The operations of the
had been intensively disq
these operations are alsd
system and in connectio

At our September me
the status of the Service
product—r:elated and stan
increase the contribution

nd Servrces Group OSRAM and the Regions

ina reported to the Supervisory Board.
remalnlng Groups and larger Regional Units
ussed in 'rhe years before. Like all our activities,
revrewed as part of our gquarterly reporting
1wrth spe‘-crf:c issues.

tmg, we recewed extensive information on
nitiative, whrch aims to expand the volume of
d-alone services offered by Siemens and further

r . .
of these|profitable, fast-growing businesses

o
.
i
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to Company sales. At this eetmg we also received a status report regard-
ing the transition of Siemers’ flnanual reporting system to the Internation-
al Financial Reporting Sranclarqs (IFRS).

-
Corporate governance i .
The Supervisory Board regularly deals with the implementation and further
development of the Comp:ny's corporate governance principles; our
December 2005 meeting was held without the Managing Board in atten-
dance. .

At our December 2006 nieeting, the Supervisory Board discussed in
detail the background to aqd present status of investigations into allega-
tions of embezzlement, bribery and tax evasion on the part of former and
current Company employees. We expressed our unconditional support for
the measures introduced byj the Audit Committee (see page 42 of this
Report).

At the same meeting, the SJpervisory Board determined that Siemens
AG - in accordance with the Company's Declaration of Conformity - had
complied with the recommelindations of the German Corporate.Governance
Code in fiscal 2006. As stated in the Declaration of Conformity approved by
the Supervisory Beard, Sierrllens complies with all but one of the Code’s rec-
ommendations: the Compall'ly does not comply with the new recommenda-
tion of the German Corporate Governance Code (as amended on June 12,
2006) regarding the annual statement of the allocation to accrued pension
liabilities or pension funds fc)r pensmn commitments to Managing Board
members. :

Further infarmation on corporate governance at the Company and a
detailed report on the levelland structure of the remuneration paid to
members of the Supervisory: and Managing Boards appear on pages 46 ff,
and 54 ff. of this Report. !

41
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Committee meetings

As one of the Supervisory Board's four committees, the Chairman’s Com-

mittee remained in close

contact V\‘flth the Managing Board between the

regular meetings of the Superwsory Board The Chairman's Committee

met threetimes, primaril
to Managnng Board remu

y 1o addre‘ss personnel matters, issues relating
heration, ‘and the determination of variable

and stock based remuneratlon components. In addition, the Chairman’s

Committee dealt with thg Company 5 strategy and performance and with

matters relatmg to corpo

rate governance

Together with the independent audltors the President and Chief

Executive Offlcer and the Chief Flnanmal Officer, the Audit Committee

discussed the Annual FmanuaI_Staternents of Siemens AG and the Con-

solidated Financial Statements of Siemens worldwide, the appropriation

of net income and the Arnual Report;on Form 20-F for the U.S. Securi-

ties and Exchange Commission (SEC), During the year, the Committee

also gave in-depth consideration to tlne Company's quarterly reports,

the appointment of thei
independence and efficie
mittee dealt intensively v

1depende:nt;auditors, oversight of the auditors’
ncy, and ‘the_ir fee. In addition, the Audit Com-
with the Company 5 risk management system

and with the authorizatian and f|nd1ngs of the internal financial audit

and the reports concerni
sition of the Company’s f
tion, the Audit Committe
the provisions of Section
internal control systems.

At the beginning of fig
fiscal 2005 was presente
Chief Compliance OfficerJ
Officer reported regularl

current and impending le

regarding the Company’s
compliance-related mea

\
ng Iegal a‘nd regulatory risks as well as the tran-

nancual reportmg system to the IFRS. In addi-
e devoted several meetings to compliance with

404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act (SOA) regarding

; |

cal 2006, the annual Compliance Report for

d to;the Audlt Committee and explained by the
At §ubse‘qulent meetings, the Chief Compliance
v to the Audit Committee on the status of

2gal proceedings, the handling of complaints
financiai statements, the implementation of

sures and/new developments in compliance law.
‘ |

.
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At its December meeting, tl"?e Audit Committee — in connection with the
legal proceedings relating to allegations of embezzlement, bribery and tax
evasion on the part of form';'r and current Company employees — retained
the law firm Debevoise & Pimpton LLP to:

w clarify the circumstances relating to the criminal allegations at Com

» analyze the implications of éurrent findings for the efficiency of the

Company's compliance system and its internal control system
» investigate whether 5|m|lar situations have arisen at any other Siemens

Group. l]

Debevoise & Plimpton will also commission independent auditors to
support them in the examiriation of Siemens’ control systems by providing
farensic accounting expert‘fl. At the suggestion of the Corporate Executive
Committee, the Audit Comrnittee appointed the internationally recognized
expert Michael J. Hershmar as Siemens’ compliance advisor.

The Audit Committee met six times during the year, sometimes with-
out the Managing Board in jattendance, to evaluate its own activities and
review its bylaws. '

The Mediation Committee, formed pursuant to § 27 (3) of the German
Codetermination Act, had qo occasion to meet during the year. The Owner-
ship Rights Committee, deflned in § 32 of the Act, voted on six resolutions
using a notational, or wrrtte“n, voting process and notified the Board of the
outcome at ensuing meetings.

All committees reported to the Supervisory Board on a regular basis.

Financial statements
Our independent auditors, I PMG Deutsche Treuhand-Geseilschaft AG
ertsc‘naftsprufungsgesellschaft {(KPM@G), Berlin and Frankfurt/Main, audit-
ed the Annual Financial Statements of Siemens AG and the related manage-
ment’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) as well as the consolidated MD&A
for the year ended September 30 2006 in accordance with the require-
ments of the German Comrﬁercial Code (HGB) and approved them without
gualification. The Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared in
accordance with U.5. generally faccepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP).
|
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KPMG's audit was conducted in acclordance with German generally
accepted standards for the audit of financia| statements promulgated by

_the *Institut der Wirtschaitsprufer in Deutschland eV." (IDW). KPMG con-

firmed that the Consolidated Flnancual Statements and the consolidated
MD&A fulfill the conditions for exemption from compliance with report-
ing rules under German law. ; !

The above mentioned|documents as well as the Managing Board's
proposal for the appropriation of net mcorne were submitted to us by
the Managing Board in a |mely manner. The Audit Committee discussed
these documents in detafl. We also examined them. The KPMG audit
reports wére presented tp all'members of the Supervisory Board, and we
reviewed them comprehensively alt our meeting on December 11, 2006,
in the presence of the in ependen} auditors, who reported on the main

findings of their audit. At|this meetlng the Managing Board explained

the Annual and Consoliddted Fmaqcaal Statements as well as the risk
management system. It lso provided a detailed report on the scope,

focal points and costs of the audit.i

As a result of the defirjitive findings of the examination by the Audit
Committee and the full Supervisory Board, we raised no objections.

In view of:our approval,
mitted.

We endorse the Mana
available for distribution
share entitled to a divide
the amount attributable
Changes in the compos
Managing Boards
The composition of the §
fiscal 2006. Thomas Rack
the conclusion of the An
2006, as ;representative
Mr. Wigand for his long y

!

he f[nanc'ial statements are accepted as sub-

ging Board's!‘proposal that the net income

be used to pay. out a dividend of €1.45 per
nd. In addutlon we approve the proposal that
to treasur.y stock be carried forward.

jtion of the Supervisory and

|

upervisory Board of Siemens AG changed in

ow Euccéedéd Klaus Wigand, who resigned at
nuaIISharehoIders’ Meeting on January 26,

of the Company’s senior executives, We thanked
ears of se rvi:ce.

i i
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" | .
i There were also changesin the compaosition of the Managing Board.
Heinz-Joachim Neubiirger, who had been a member of the Managing
Board since November 199:| and Chief Financial Officer since January
1998, left the Company onll\prgl 30, 2006. Joe Kaeser was appointed
member of the Managing Board and Chief Financial Officer. In this latter
capacity, Mr, Kaeser is also Ell member of the Corporate Executive Com-
! mittee. He was previously tead of Corporate Strategies.
’ Dr. h.c. Thomas Ganswmdt left the Company on September 30, 2006.
A member of the Managung Board since December 2002, he was elected
‘ in October 2004 to the Corporate Executive Committee, where he had
special respansibility for the: Company s Information and Communica-
tions business area.

Eduardo Montes was aprointed member of the Managing Board
. of Siemens AG and Presider't of the Communications Group, effective
‘ May 1, 2006. Mr. Montes wils previously President of Siemens in Spain.

Professor Dr. Edward G, krubasik, who had been a member of the Cor-
porate Executive Committeq since the beginning of 1997, and Professor
Dr. Claus Weyrich, who had been a member of the Managing Board and
head of Corporate Technology since October 1996, left the Company at
the end of their terms of oflrce on September 30, 2006.
We thanked the departiny members of the Managing Board far their
§ many years of e»:traordinaryI commitment to the Company.

Professor Dr. Hermann Re: quardt, who has been a member of the
Managing Board since May i, 2006 was elected to the Corporate Execu-
tive Committee, effective Ot tober1 2006. Within the Committee, he has
: special responsibility for Slellnens vDO Automotive (SV) and the Reqgion
' Japan. He is also head of Co;iporate Technology.

!

3 Berlin and Munich, Decembiir 11, 2006
| For the Supervisory Board | |

o v i

Prof. Dr. Heinrich v. Pierer
Chairman
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Corporate Governance Report

In keeping with its traditions, Siemens places a high priority on corporate governance, Siemens
complies with the recommendationsof the Gerlman Corporate Governance Code (Code}, which
was first issued in 2002 and later ex anded in May 2003, in June 2005 and in June 2006, in all
but one respect: no individual disclosure of the annual allocation 1o accrued pension liabilities
or pension funds for members of thg Managing Board in the case of pension plans. Since dis-
closure of pension awards 10 members of the Managing Board is statutorily required only by

the next annual repon the isolated 1sclosure

of the individual allocation to accrued pension

liahilities or pension [ unds in the cage of pension tpians does not appear to be appropriate.

The Managing Bqard and the Supervisory B Jafd of Siemens AG, respectively, discussed com-
pliance with the recommendations of the' Code in particular with regard to the amendments of
June 12, 2006. Based on these delibetaliohs, the Boards approved the Declaration of Conformity
(with the Code) whic:h is set forth belpw ((:)n page 5:3 of this Repert), posted on our website and
updated as necessary. Siemens volur tarily com pliles with the Code’s non-obligatory sugges-

tions, with only minor exceptions.

Our listing on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) subjects us to certain U.S. capital market
laws (including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act [SOA)) and regulations of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and rules of the NYSE. To facilitate our compliance with the S0A,
we have, among other things, establjshed a Disclosure Commitiee (comprised of nine central
depariment heads) that is responsible for reviewing certain financial and non-financial infor-
mation and advising the Managing Board in its decision-making about disclosure. We have also

introduced procedures that require pur Group
matters, providing a basis on which our CEOa
s has also lmplememed procedures for handling account-

SEC. Consistent with the SOA, Siem

and subsidiary managements lo certify various
nd CFO certify our financial statements to the

ing complaints and a Code of Ethics|for Financial Matters.
1 1

Management and Control Structufe
The Supervisory Board

1

As a German stock corporation, S:emens is sub]ect to German corporate law and has a two-
tier management and oversight siry clure, con51st1ng of a 10-member Managing Board and a
20-member Supervisory Board. The|German Codelermmanon Act (Mithestimmungsgesetz)
requires that the Company's shareh blders and 115 employees each select one-half of the Super-

visory Board's members.
'
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According to the Bylaws for thfé Supervisory Board, the shareholder representatives must be
independent. Same Supervisory lioaljd members hold, or held in the past year, high-ranking
positions at other companies; nevertheless, our sales and purchases of products and/or servic-
es to or from such companies are transacied on an arm’s length basis. We believe that these
dealings do not compromise the independence of the associated Supervisory Board members.

The Supervisory Board overselss and advises the Managing Board in its management of
Company business. At regular inlervals, it discusses business development, planning, strategy
and implementation. It also discu sses Siemens’ quarterly reports and approves the annual,
stand-alone financial statements!df Siemens AG, as well as the Consolidated Financial State-
ments of Siemens, taking into aC(lount both the audit reports provided by the independent
auditors and the results of the reuew ‘conducted by the Audit Committee, In addition, the Super-
visory Board appoints the members of the Managing Board and allocates members’ individual
duties. Important Managing Board décisions - such as major acquisitions, divestments and
financial measures - require Sup ;rvisory Board approval.

The Supervisory Board’s Bylavss establish four committees, whose duties, responsibilities
and procedures fulfill the require ments of the Code, reflect applicable SOA requirements and
incorporate applicable NYSE rules][ as well as certain NYSE rules not mandatorily applicable to
Siemens AG.

The Chairman’s Committee l:-erforms the collective tasks of a nominating, compensation
and corporate governance committee. In particular, it makes proposals regarding the appoint-
ment of Managing Board membm]:*s and establishes guidelines for the conditions of employ-
ment and for the structure and level of the remuneration of Managing Board members.

The Audit Committee consists of three shareholder representatives and two employee rep-
resentatives. The Supervisory Board monitors the independence of the members of the com-
mittee and sees to it that they have special knowledge and experience in the application of
accounting principles and intern:1 control processes. The Audit Committee oversees the appro-
priateness and the effectiveness olf the Company’s external and internal accounting processes.
Together with the independent au litors, it also reviews the Company’s financial statements pre-
pared quarterly and annually by r'nan'agemem On the basis of the independent auditors’ report
on the annual financial statement': the Audit Committee makes a recommendation to the
Supervisory Board whether or not 1t should approve those financial statements. [n addition,
the Audit Commitiee oversees the Corppany s internal control system and its procedures for
assessing, monitoring and managing risk. It also monitors statutery and regulatory compli-
ance. The Company’s Financial Audit Department reports regularly to the Audit Committee.

[n addition, the Audit Committee mmenitors the independence, qualifications, rotation and per-

formance of the independent auditors and performs the other functions required of it under
the SOA.




i
Corparate Gavernance Report

48

:

!

|
The Mediation C?mmittee subm|
Supervisory Board cannot reach the
member. }

|
|
[
|
1 ]
I !
| |
[ i

I
its propos.lls lo the Supervisory Board in the event that the

Wo- llhll“dS ma]orlty required to appoint a Managing Board

The Ownership Rights Committec is frespo nsible for decisions regarding the exercise of
. » . . . sbye N . ! . .
Siemens’ shareholder rights in subsidiaries subject to the German Codetermination Act.

The Managing Board
The Managing Board, as the Compa

'
' |

[
's top management bedy, is obligated to promote the

interests of the Company at all times|and to drive sustainable growth in company value. Its

eight-member Corporate Executive
overall Company policies and is also
entation, planning and finalizing thg
the executive managemem of each Gi
quarierly reports, thé annual, stand-
dated Financial Statements of Sieme|
visory Board, infom{xing it regularly,
gy and strategy implememation, pla
and risks. i

Directors’ dealings of Managing B
Pursuant to § 15a of the German Secy
and Supervisory Boards are required

financial instru ments based on such|shares if the total amount of transactions of a board mem-

ber and any closely assocmted perso
The following transactions were ¢

t

mmittee cooperates with the President and CEO to define
esponsible for determining the Company’s sirategic ori-

3 Company's budget, allocating resources, and monitoring
roup. The ;Malnagmg Board also prepares the Company’s
hlone financial statements of Siemens AG and the Consoli-
hs. The Ma‘na'ging Board cooperates closely with the Super-
promptly zJ,md fully on all issues related to Company strate-
nniqg, business development, financial position, earnings

b

nard and Subemsnry Board
xrmes Tradmg Act (WpHG), members of the Managing
to disclose purchases or sales of shares of Siemens AG or

h is at leaslt €5 000 during any calendar year.
xecuted in fiscal 2006 and reported to Siemens:
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Date Form and Financial Number
of trans- First and Functioni pta'l':_e of instsument of Share  Total
action  family name  Status transaction  and (SIN shares price  amount Comment
0915/ Uriel Member Sahi of shares Siemens Share 7875  €6742 €530,932.50 Sale of sharesin line
2006  Jonathan of Managing XEJRA DE0O0QO7236101 with 1999 Siemens
Sharet Board Stock Option Plan
091151 Klaus President Saliofshares SiemensShare 3900 €67.42 €262.938  Sale of shares in line
2006  Kleinfeld of Managing XETRA DEDOO7236101 with 1999 Siemens
Board Stock Option Plan
09M5/  ErichR. Member Salii of shares Siemens Share 8,775  €6742 €591,610.50 Sale of shares in line
2006 Reinhardt of Managing XETRA DEQUO7236101 with 1999 Siemens
Board Stock Option Plan
09113/  Edward G. Member saliiof shares Siemens Share 17250 €67.15 €1,158,33750 Sale of shares in line
2008 Krubasik of Managing  XETRA DEQDO7236101 with 1999 Siamens.
Board Stock Option Plan
b62nal Klaus Member SalEEof shares Siemens Share 11,250 €755 €84543750 Sale of sharesin line
2006 Wucherer of Managing XEIRA DE0QO7236101 with 1999 Siemens
Board Stock Gption Plan
02102/  Heinrich President  Saljof shares Siemens Share 17250 €73.96 €1.275,810  Sale of shares in line
2006 v. Pierer of Supervisory XETRA - DEQOD7236101 with 1999 Siemens
Board ]! Stock Option Plan
02101 Heinz- Member Sali[of shares SiemensShare 30,000 €75.40 €2,250,000 Sale of shares in line
2006  Joachim of Managing XET3A DEQOO7236101 with 2001 Siemens
Neubiirger  Board || Stock Option Plan
12116} Klaus Member Sal(_'[of shares Siemens Share 200 €70.44 €14,088 Regular Sale of
2005 Wigand of Supervisory XET3A DED007236100 Siemens shares
8oard ”
12100 Hirgen Member Salé[of shares SiemensShare 11,250 €66.47 €747787.50 Sale of shares in line
2005 Radomski of Managing XET1A DE0QO7236101 with 1999 Siemens
Board Il Stock Option Plan
Mi25!1  Caus Member Sa!efiof shares Siemens Share 10,000 €65.01 €650,100 Sale of shares in line
2005 Weyrich of Managing XETA DEODQO7236%01 with 2001 Siemens
Board '[ Stock Option Plan
n251  Claus Member Sale'of shares Siemens Share 10,500 €65.01 €682,605  Sale of sharesin line
2005  Weyrich of Managing XETRA DEQDD7236101 with 1999 Siemens
Eoard I Stock Optien Plan
118 Thomas Member Sale'of shares Siemens Share 20,000 €64.99 €1,299,800  Sale of shares in line
2005 Ganswindt  of Managing XETIlA DEQOO7236101 with 2001 Siemens
Board ] Stock Option Plan

These transactions were duly published on the Company’s Internet website at
www.siemens.com/directors-deali ngs,
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- Shareholder relations i

Four Limes each year, 'Siemens AG regorts to its

shareholders regarding its business develop-

I
ment, financial posmon and earnings. An ordlr}ary Annual Shareholders’ Meeting normally

hs of each
ing throu

takes place within the first four mont
shareholder panicipétion in the mee
the Internet - and enables sharehold
Among other things, the Annual §
income, ratification of the acts of the
of the independent auditors. Amendr
change the Company's capital stock
ing and are implemented by the Man gmg Boa
to the proposats of the Managing an SUpems
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. Shar holders o

value of €100,000 or more may also demand the

specific occurrences.

Iﬂscial year. The Managing Board facilitates
gh electronic communications - in particular

.rs who are unable to attend the meeting 1o vote by proxy.
hareholders’ Meeting decides on the appropriation of net

Managingland Supervisory Boards, and the appointment

hents to thle Articles of Association and measures which

Te approved excluswely at the Annual Shareholders’ Meet-

rd. Shareholders may submit counter-proposals
1y Boards and may contest decisions of the
ning Siemens stock with an aggregate notional
appointment of special auditors to examine

As part of our investor relations agtivities, the CEQ, the CFO and individual members of the

Groups' executive management meef regularly
hold a conference for analysts once alyear, as w
the publication of our quarterly results.

Business Conduct Guidelines and
The Managing Board has establishe
compliance with applicable laws, co
and insider trading. The Guidelines
rules are binding for all Siemens em loyees an
Supervisory Board shall comply with|them whe

A compliance omcer who reports
ing those submitted anonymously In accordan
for handling potential complaints re
relevant complaints from specific attorneys (in

Business
icts of in

nde of Eth

so specify

with analysts and institutional investors. We

ell as telephone conferences with analysts upon

|
lCIS
_.orllduct Guidelines that contain rules regarding
erest, the use of Company assets and facilities,
procehures for dealing with complaints. These
d the Managing Board. The members of the
re apphcable

to the Audlt Commmee processes all complaints, includ-

I::e wnth the requirements of the SOA, procedures

ated o accoummg practices, and procedures for handling

ternal and external} have also been implement-

ed. In addition to the internal procedures for réporting and handling complaints, an external
attorney has been engaged recently o act as an independent “ombudsman” and to provide a

new protected communication chan
the Managing Board and the Superv
cial Matters, as requlred hy the SOA rules! Both
of Ethics for F manaal Mattlers are avallable on

i
|
+
'
1

hel for Siemens employees and third parties. Furthermore,
soryLBoard have implemented a Code of Ethics for Finan-

1hé Business Conduct Guidelines and the Code
our website.

|
i
i
\
|
I
|
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Corporate Governance Guidei!linels
Our Articles of Association, the[Bylaws for the Supervisory Board and its committees, the
Bylaws for the Managing Board‘|all declarations of conformity, the report on our fulfillment of
the requirements of the Code, and various other documents pertaining te cur corporate gover-
nance may be found on our Internet website at www.siemens.com/corporate_governance.
| -

Significant differences from WYSE Corporate Governance Standards
Companies listed on the NYSE a Ire s:ubject to the Corporate Governance Standards of Section
303A (the NYSE Standards) of th}e NEYSE Listed Company Manual. Under the NYSE Standards,
Siemens AG, as a foreign privat issuer, is permitted to follow its home-country corporate gov-
ernance practices in lieu of the iNYSE Standards, except that it is required to comply with the
NYSE Standards relating to the having of an audit committee (comprised of members who are
“independent” under the SOA) El.lnd ‘}o certain NYSE notification obligations. In addition, the
NYSE Standards require that foreign private issuers disclose any significant ways in which their
corporate governance practices differ from those required of U.S. domestic companies under
the NYSE Standards.

As a company incorporated II n Gérmany, Siemens AG has to comply with the German law
applicable to stock carporationsl [(pr.imarily the German Stack Corpora[ion Act) and the Co-
determination Act and generallv follows the recomimendations of the German Corporate Gover-
nance Code. Purthermore, Siemzns complies with applicable rules and regulations of those
markets on which its securities IIII'Q listed, such as the NYSE, and also voluntarily complies with
many of the NYSE requirementslthat by their terms apply only to U.S. domestic issuers.

The significant differences b'etwéen our governance practices and those of U.S. domestic
NYSE issuers-are as follows:

Two-tier board :

The German Stock Corpora{ion.lkcl requires Siemens AG to have a two-tier board structure con-
sisting of 2 Managing Board an(t a Supervisory Beard. The two-tier system provides a strict sep-
aration of management and sugervision. Roles and responsibilities of each of the two hoards
are clearly defined by law. The d)mﬁosition of the Supervisory Board is determined in accor-
dance with tHe CodeterminationlAct, which requires that one-half of the required 20 Superviso-
ry Board members must be elecied #)y our domestic employees. In the event of a tie vote at the

Supervisory Board, the Chairmah of the Supervisory Board is entitled 1o cast a deciding vote.
b
v

o

!
i
i

|
i
!
]
H
|
[
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Independence :

In contrast to the NYSE Standards, whig
pendence of the individual directors wi

h reqmre lhe board 10 affirmatively determine the inde-
th reference to specific tests of independence, German

law does not require 1h.e Supervisory Berd to make such affirmative findings on an individual

basis. At the same time, the Bylaws for
to help ensure the independence of the
more, the members of the Supervisory
another; a member of one board is lega
other. Supervisory Board members hav
prehibited from following the directioy
visory Board membersf may not enter i
Siemens, unless approved by the Supey

+

Committees

In contrast to the NYSE Standards, whi¢

mittees, compoéed of independent dirg
forth their tasks and responsibilities, 1}
functions of a nominating, compensat
man’s Committee. Both the Audit Com
bylaws — adopted by the Supervisory Bq
respective purposes and responsibiliti

The Audit Committee of Siemens AG
Exchange Act of 1934, as applicable to g
10 those of an audit commitiee subject
precludes certain responsibilities from
the independent auditors, who are req
meeting.

Siemens AG also has an Ownership
of which is required by German law. N

::emens Sluper\.'lsory Board contain several provisions
Supemsory Board’s advice and supervision. Further-
hnd Managing Boards are strictly independent from one
1y p'xjohibi'ted from being concurrently active on the

3 ind_epender‘il decision making authority and are legally
or inslructiun of any affiliated party. Moreover, Super-
10 adwsory, service or certain other contracts with
visory Board! i

I

th reguire ‘lhe: creation of several specified board com-
ctor§ and Pp?rating pursuant to written charters that set
he Supervisory Board of Siemens AG has combined the
on and co‘rpo'rale governance committee in the Chair-
mittee and the Chairman's Committee have written

vard based on the NYSE Standards - addressing their

s,

bis Sl.lbjef.‘t to the standards of the SOA and the Securities
forelgn private issuer, and performs functions similar
ko the full NYSE Standards. Nevertheless, German law
being delegated to a committee, such as the selection of
hired by German law to be elected at the shareholders’

b

Rights Committee and a Mediation Committee, the latter

:ithe:r is relquired under the NYSE Standards.

b

'

i
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Shareholder approval of equity compénsation plans; stock repurchases

The NYSE Standards generally reg uire U.S. domestic companies listed on the NYSE to obtain
shareholder approval of all equny compensation plans (1ncludmg stock option plans) and

any material revisions to them. Sl'm]arly, our adoption of stock option plans and any material
revisions thereto require the appr‘aval by our shareholders in so far as the issuance of shares
and/or stock options under autho: lzed or contingent capital authorizations requires share-
holder approval (which approval rllequlres consideration of the key elements of the applicable
option plan or relevant modif lcat!Pns). The 2001 Siemens Stock Option Plan, for example, was
approved in 2001 by our sharcholders. This approval expires in December 2006 (five years after
the first grant of options under th is authorization). Similarly, under German law, share buy-
backs generally require the prior juthorization by shareholders. Such approval was provided at
our January 26, 2006 Annual Sha Iehqlders' Meeting, and this matter will genarally be voted
upon annually.

Declaration of Conformity with the Code

On December 6 and December 11!»2006 respectively, the Managing Board and the Supervisory
Board approved the following Declarauon of Conformity pursuant io § 161 of the German Stock
Corporation Act: '

Siemens AG fully complies aml will continue to comply with the recommendations of the
German Corporate Governance Cade (Code) in the version of June 12, 2006 with one exception
(no individual disclosure of the alllnual allocation to accrued pension liabilities or pension
funds for members of the Manag lng Board in the case of pension plans, Section 4.2.5 para. 2,
7nd sentence of the Code). Since jnaking its last Declaration of Conformity dated November 9,
2005, Siemens AG has fully complied with the recommendations of the Code in the version of
June 2, 2005. |

Berlin and Munich, December 11,2006

Siemens Aktiengesellschaft ‘
Managing Board Supervisory Board
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Compen ation Report

The Compensation Report outlines the prmclpl CS used for determining the compensation of
the Managing Board of Siemens AG apd sets out the tevel and structure of Managing Board
remuneration. !

In addition, the [‘Eport describes the pohcnes and levels of compensation paid to Supervisory
Board members and gives details of stock ownershlp by members of the Managing and Super-
visory Boards.

The report is based on the recommny ondéa'tionc and suggestions of the German Corporate
Governance Code an%i comprises dalg that in accordance with the requirements of the German
Commercial Code (HGB) as amended|by the Act|on'the Disclosure of Managing Board Remuner-
ation (VorstOG), are an integral part of thf; Notels to Consolidated Financial Statements pur-

- suantto § 314 of the HGB or of Management’s discussion and analysis pursuant to § 315 of the
HGB. } | |
Therefore, the information explained in this|report is not additionally presented in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements or in Managemem's discussion and analysis.
j 2 i
! : |
1. Managing Board remuneration t |
! |
The Chairman's Commlttee of the Suﬁemsory B oalrd is responsible for determining the remu-
neration of the members of the Manaplng!Board The Committee comprises Prof. Dr. Heinrich
v. Pierer (Chairman of the Supemsory Board) and Dr. Josef Ackermann and Ralf Heckmann
(both Deputy Chalrmen of the Super\!ﬂs,ory Board).

The remu neratlon of the memberg of the Managing Board of Siemens AG is based on the
Company's size and global presence, ]ts economlc and financial position, and the level and
structure of managing board compensation paid by peer companies. In addition, the compen-
sation reflects each Nianaging Board member’s res'ponsibilities and performance. The level of
Board compensation is designed {0 b¢ competitive in the market for highly qualified executives
and to provide mcemlves in a high-performance culture.

In fiscal year 2006 the Managing uard remuneratlon had four componenits: (i) a fixed
annual salary, (ii) a varrahie bonus which the Chalrmans Committee may adjust upward or
downward by up to 20 percent of the gmount of target attainment, (iii) stock-based compensa-
tion, and (iv) a pensmln benefit contri ution. With regard to fixed salary and bonus, an annual
target campensation is determined, cpnsisting of 50% fixed and 50% variable components. The
target compensation lis reviewed every two to three years on the basis of an analysis of the com-
pensation paid by peér companies to their, “lop rr'lanagers The last review was conducted as of
April 1, 2006. In the course of this review, the target compensation was adjusted upward by
approximately 20%. In addition, the ¢ mposmon of the total compensation was changed with
the goal of giving greater importanceto stock based compensation, excluding the payment of
the LT bonus i m the form of a commit ent to issue Hor transfer shares {see below), in the future
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Therefore, this compensation co mponem was raised. The granting of stock options is no longer
planned. Overall the average conpensatmn was adjusted upward by approximately 30%. This
adjustment is not obvious in thelManaglng Board remuneration reported in this section as the
values were reduced by the amount of increase related to the target compensation for one year
and the proposed-amount of increase of the stock-based compensation for fiscal year 2006, in
connection with the hardship fu"nd t:o provide financial support for employees of BenQ Mobhile

in Germany (see below).

i
I
l
|
!
;

i
The remuneration of the Managlng Board members is composed as follows:

= The fixed compensation is pald asa monthly salary.

a The variable bonus is based on the level of the Company’s attainment of certain EVA
targets and other financial g Lals, if any, that are set at the start of the fiscal year by the
Chairman’s Commitiee of the: Supervisory Board. One half of the benus is paid as an annual
bonus and is contingent upoa achieving the Company-wide EVA target established for the
fiscal year. The other half is granted as a long-term bonus (LT bonus), the amount of which
depends on the average artainment of EVA targets over a three-year period. In any year, the
annual bonus and the LT bor!,us may not exceed 250 percent of the base amount applicable
to the variable compensatior! component. In addition to the EVA-oriented targets in fiscal
2006 a target relating to net rash from operating and investing activities was established.
For fiscal year 2005 for the last time, one half of the LT bonus was paid in the form of a com-
mitment to issue or transfer“shares of Siemens AG (stock awards), while the other half was
paid in cash. Beginning with lthe fiscal year 2006, the LT bonus is paid entirely in cash.

The same principles for determining the bonus apply to Managing Board members who
are nol members of the Corporate Executive Committee. Their targets, however, may addi-
tionally depend on the finan'gial performance of the corporate units they lead. The LT bonus
was already paid out fully in Icash in fiscal 2005.

s The stock-based compensan:m consists of stock options issued under the terms of the 2001
Siemens Stock Option Plan as authorized by shareholders at the Annual Shareholders’
Meeting of Siemens AG on Fi -brﬁary 22,2001 and a commitment to issue or transfer shares
of Siemens AG (stock awardc) The Chairman's Committee of the Supervisory Board may
restrict or cap the exercise oi stock options in the event of extraordinary, unforeseen
changes in the market price of the Siemens stock. The Chairman’s Committee of the Super-
visory Board has decided thct only stock awards will be granted for fiscal year 2006 and
with effect from fiscal year 2307 onwards

= Under the Siemens Defined uonmbutlon Benefit Plan (BSAV} members of the Managing
Board receive contrlbuuonsh

e
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on the basis of a percentage of thei

by the Chairman's Committee of thF

r

!

!
respecnve target annual compensation established
Super\.'lsory1 Board. A portion of these contributions

is accounted for by fundmg of pengion commllmems earned prior to transfer to the BSAV.

In addition, spemal[ contributions o

' i ! ;
Employment contracts with Managihg Board me

severance commitmel}t in the event of]
payments may result from individually

However, members of the Managing
before Qctober 1, 2602 have a contract
months after leaving the Managing Bo|
fixed salary of the year of resignation 3
fiscal years before resignation. In sing
get compensation.

In the event of a change of control -
cert acquire a majority of the voting rig
or if Siemens AG becomes a dependent
tract within the meaning of § 291 of th
is 10 be merged into an existing corpon
Board has the right to terminate the co
a substantial change in position {e.g. d
Managing Board meml:Jer's duties and
the Managing Board member will recei
annual compensation il:lpplicable at the
tual term of office, but at leasi for a per

g Board wh
1al rlght to receive transitional payments for twelve
ard. The tr

i
nay be gra 1ted on the basis of individual decisions.

I

mbers generally do not include any explicit
an éarly resignation from office. However, severance
agreed termination arrangements.

o were appointed to the Managing Board

ansitional payments generally amount to the
nd the average of variable bonuses paid for the last three
e cases the qansmon_al payments equal a one-year tar-

& .
ie. {f one or iseveral shareholders acting jointly or in con-
hts an SiEfl’lEl;’lS AG and exercise a controlling influence,
enterprise as a result of entering into an enterprise con-
 German étol:k Corporation Act (AkIG), or if Siemens AG
Ation or other entity - any member of the Managing
1tract of employment if such change of control results in
lie to a chalnge in corporate strategy or a change in the
respons:bll:tles) If this right of termination is exercised,
ve a severance payment which amounts to the target
time of contract termination for the remaining contrac-
od of three years. In addition, non-monetary benefits

amount of increase for fiscal year 2006,
transferred to the hardshlp fund to pro
Germany. .
|

are settled by a cash payment equal to five percent of the severance payment. No severance pay-
ments are made if the Managing Board mermber receives benefits from third parties in connec-
tion with a change of control. A right o termmatmn does not exist if the change of control
occurs within a period of twelve (12} m nths prior to a Managing Beard member’s retirement.

On November 7, 2006 the Chairman’s Commlttee of the Supervisory Board determined the
benus amounts and the number of stock awards to be granted, after assessing the attainment
of the targets set at the start of the fisc year

For the fiscal year 2006, the aggregate cash Compslsnsatlon amounted to €27.8 million
(2005: €20.9 million) and total remuneration amounted to €30.4 million (2005: €28.0 million),
representing an mcreaoe in total remu eranon of 8.5 percent.

In the process, both the variable casl
by the amount of increése related to the

h bonus and 1he stock-based compensation were reduced
larget compensatlon for one year and the proposed
respectwely The resulting total of €4,52 million was
vide f1nanc1al support for employees of Ben(Q) MObl[E in

.

i |
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The following compensation was ‘determined for the members of the Managing Board for

L

fiscal year 2006: (.
11 '
; Cash Fair value of stock-
(Amounts in €7 ' compensation based compensation Total
Prof. Dr. Keinrich v. Pierer™ ‘i 2006 ‘ - - _
! 2005 558,389 244,414 1,202,803
Dr. Klaus Kleinfeld'® : 2006 3,248,462 . 375,058 3,623,520
i 2005 2,323,192 946,911 3,270,104
prof. Johannes Feldmayer 2006 2363217 250,016 2,613,233
2005 1,821,301 716,666 2,537,967
Dr. Thomas Ganswindt 2006 2,420,147 - 2,420,147
2005 1,764,548 641,515 2,406,463
Joe Kaeser'? 2006 963,983 300,046 1,264,029
2005 - - -
Prof. Dr. Edward G, Krubasik 2006 2,453,825 - 2,453,825
2005 1,832,685 716,666 2,549,351
Rudi Lamprecht 2006 2,272,986 250,016 2,523,002
2005 1,730,431 625,190 2,355,621
Heinz-Joachim Neubilrger™® 20:06 1,422,636 - 1,422,636
2005 1,822,925 716,666 2,539,591
Dr. Jurgen Radomski 20@6 2,351,448 250,016 2,601,464
2005 1,818,389 716,666 2,535,055
Dr. Uriel ). Sharef 2006 2,360,975 250,016 2,610,991
2005 1,831,833 716,666 2,548,499
Prof. Dr, Klaus Wucherer 2006 2,350,989 250,016 2,601,005
2005 1,822,218 716,666 2,538,884
Eduardo Montes®®! 2006 1,071,137 200,054 1,271,191
20605 - - _
Prof. Dr. €rich R, Reinhardt® 2006 2,038,914 200,054 2,238,968
2005 1,756,836 200,034 1,956,870
Prof. Dr. Hermann Requardtls’“’ 2006 913,559 200,054 1,113,613
2005 - - z
Prof, Dr. Claus Weyrich® 2006 1,606,982 - 1,606,982
2005 1,381,890 150,007 1,531,997
Total t 2006 27,839,260 2,525,348 30,364,606
[ 2005 20,865,138 7,108,067 27,973,205

® The amounts for 2006 shown in this table are thdie obtained after reducing the variable cash bonus and the stack-based compensation in connection with
the transfer of Managing Board remunerat on to jhe hardship fund for BenQ Mobile employees in Germany. The fair value of stack-based compensation
relates 1o stock options and stock awards grantec in November 2006 and 2005 for fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively.

@ On January 27, 2005, Prof, Dr. Heinrich v. Pierer w'_!s elected to the Supervisory Board of Siemens AG. Dr. Klaus leinfeld was sppointed to succeed
prof. Or. Helnrich v, Pierer as CEQ and President of the Managing Board of Siemens AG, effective January 27, 2005,

0 joa Kaeser was appointed a full member of the Whanaging Board of Siemens AG, effective May 1, 2006.

" Heinz-loachim Neubiirger resigned from the Man::sging Board on Aprit 30, 20086.

5} Eduardo Montes and Prof. Dr. Hermann Requardt were appointed deputy members ef the Managing Board of Siemens AG, effective May 1, 2006.

® Deputy members of the Managing Board, Praf. D:‘ Hem’;ann Requardt was appoeinted a full member of the Managing Board of Siemens AG. effective

i

October 1, 2006.

o
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The following table describes the defa
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Cad

1s of cash compensation:
|
1

1 compensation
{Amounts in €)% i Salar‘); . .Am:'tual_ honus " LT honus Other® Totai
Prof. Or. Heinrich v. Pierer™ ! 2006 5 o= - - -
: 2005 415,000 299,257 244 4450 9,687 958,389
Dr. Klaus Kleinfeld® I 206  1,1p0,480 1,055,707 998,721 33554 | 324862
! 2005 2l0,040 768,794 571,883 32,476 2,322,193
Prof. Johannes Feldmayer 2006 BHS,SZQ 74:?,'819 728,408 41,470 2,363,217
_ . 2005 715,040 571,280 466,627 28,354 1,821,301
Dr. Thomas Ganswindt , 2006 755,040 835,790 715,529 113,788 2,430,147
, 2005 745,040 571.280 391,452 47,176 1,764,948
Joe Kaeser®™ ! 2006 325,600 337,448 291,460 10,075 963,983
y 2005 - |- - - -
Prof. Dr. Edward G, Krubasik | 2006 735,040 835,790 817,839 45156 2,453,825
. i 2005 745,040 571,280 466,627 39,738 1,832,685
Rudi Lamnprecht ¢ 2006 845,520 747,819 651,022 28,625 2,272,986
b 2005 715,040 571,280 375,136 28,975 1,730,431
Heinz-Joachim Neubiirger® ' 2006 440,440 4B7,544 477,073 17,579 1,422,636
2005 715,040 571,280 466,627 29,978 1,822,925
Dr. Siirgen Radomski© ' 2006 845520  |747,819 728,408 29,701 2,354,448
I 2005 715,04¢° 571,280 466,627 25,442 1,818,389
Dr. Urief J. Sharef i 2006 845,520, 747,819 728,408 39,228 2,360,975
) b 2005 745,040 571,280 466,627 38,886 1,831,833
Prof. Dr. Klaus Wucherec | 2006 845,520 747,819 728,408 29,242 2.350,989
. 2005 745.040 577,280 466.627'% 29,271 1,822,218

! i

Eduardo Montes® ., 2006 325,000, 400,416 330,411 15,310 1,071,137
' 2005 - - - - -
Prof. Dr. Erich R. Reinhardt® | 2006 714,990 658,513 633,237 32174 2,038,914
: ' 2005 5:15,030° 505,841 692,671 32,294 1,756,836
Prof. Dr. Hermann Requardt™® 2006 291,750 321,558 292,633 7.618 913,559
1 2005 4 bo- - - -
erof, Dr. Claus Weyrich(® ' 2008 506,500 543,031 531,368 27,083 1,606,982
2005 453,600, 344,205 562,285" 25.500 1,381,990
Total | 2006 9,500,840 9,213,892 8,652,925 470,603 | 27,839,260
. 2005 8.37|1, 390, 6L489 337 5.637,634% 367,777 | 20,865,138

™ IT bonus cash postion.

Qctober 1, 2006,

I
!

“1 On January 27, 2005, Prof. Or. Hemnr.hv Pierer was elected to
Prof. Dr. Heinzich v. Perer as CEQ and President of the Managmp Board of 54emeps AG, effective fanuary 27 2005.

™ Joe Kaeser was appointed a full member of the Managing Boarfl of S:emens AG, affective May 1, 2006,

® Heinz-loachim MeubOrger resigned from the Managing Board gn April 30, 2006, 5

" Eduarda Montes and Prof. Dr. Hermann Requardt were appointed deputy members of the Managing Board of Siemens AG, effective May 1, 2006.

™ Deputy members of the Managing Board. Prof. Or. Hermann R:!E

® The amounts for 2006 shown in lhls table are those obtained dfter reduclng- th varlable cash bonus in connection with the transfer of Managing Board
remuneration 1o the hardship fund for BenQ Mobile employees 1

M Other compensation includes nan-gash benefits in the form of
€85,665), accommadaticen and mmnng expenses of €10,500 (

in Germany
[company cars of €300 753 (2005: €282.112), subsidized insurance of €80,527 {2005:
005: €0.00), and 3 cash settlement of stock awards of €78,823 (2005: €0.00).

he Supervisory Bcard of Siemens AG. Dr. Klaus Kleinfeld was appeinted 1o succeed

uardt was appointed a full member of the Managing Board of Siemens AG, elfective
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: Both, the number of units and the values of the stock-based compensation components,
4 are shown in the following table. The stock awards were recorded at the market price of the
Siemens stock on the date of conimitment less the present value of dividends expected during
. . K - . s .

the holding period, because sm(”k awards are not eligible to receive dividends. The resulting
value amounted to €67.70 (2005:[{-:'5228).

For fiscal year 2006, the merqI}Jer:s of the Managing Board received a total of 37302 stock
awards, with a total fair value of,€2,525,346. Stock options were no longer granted.
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Accordingly, stock-based compensatio

n wal‘s as follows:

| Stock-bas¢d compensation |
i Number of units ! Fair value
! ‘ Stock ' ! Stock
awards | Other, t awards  Other
i from LT- [ stock Stock fromLT-  stock Stock
{(Amounts in number of units or € bonus™ |awards™ qptions® bonus®  awards® options™ Total
Prof. Dr. Heinrich v. Pierer! - 2006 - P~ |- - - - -
, 2005 4,267 - L = 244414 - - 244,414
Dx. Klaus Kleinfeld - 2006 - | 5540 L - - 375058 -| 375058
2005 9,984 3,470 3,415 571,884 198,762 176,265 946,911
Prof. Johannes Feldmayer 2006 - 3,693 L - - 250,016 - 250,016
. 2005 8,145 2,314 28,§45 466,603 132,546 117,517 716,666
Dr. Thomas Ganswindt 2006 - .- "o - - - -
' ' 2005 6,834 2314 [8bas | 301,452 132546 117,517 641,515
Joe Kaeser™ ' 2006 - 4,432 - - 300,046 - 300,046
' 2005 - - | - - - - -
Prof. Dr. Edward G, Krubasik ' 2006 - b i - - - - _
2005 8,145 2,314 128,945 466,603 132,546 117,517 716,666
Rudi Lamprecht 2006 - 3,693 [ - 250,016 - 250,016
2005 6,549 2,314 28,945 375127 132546 117,517 625,190
Heinz-joachim Neubilrger® , - - - - - - - ~
2005 8,146 2,314 128,945 466,603 132546 117,517 716,666
Dr. Jirgen Radomski 2006 - 3,693 f - - 250,016 - 250,016
L2005 8,146 2314 |8945 466,603 132,546 117,517 716,666
D, Urie! §, Sharaf 2006 - 3,693 - - 250,016 -1 006
2005 8,148 2314 L?8.945 466,603 132,546 117,517 716,666
Prof. Dr. Klaus Wucherer ' 2006 - 3,693 - - 250,016 - 250,016
' 2005 8,146 2,314 P8,945 466,603 132,546 117,517 716,666
Eduartio Mortes™a! ' 2006 - | 285 - - 200,054 -1 200,054
1 2005 - (I - - —~ - -
Praf, Dr. Erich R. Reinhardt® ' 2006 - | 2955 L P - - 200,054 ~| 200,054
i 2005 - 1,851 3,155 - 106025 94,009 200,034
Prol. Dr, Hermann Requardt™®'2006 - | 2985 - - 200,054 -| 200054
, V2008 - - ' _ - - N
Prof, Dr. Claus Weyrich® i 2006 - - .- - _ _ _
' L2005 - 1,388 17,365 - 79,505 70,502 150,007
Total 12006 - 37,302 - - 2,525,346 - | 2,525,346
L2005 76510 |15201  3|5495 | 4,382,495 1,444,660 1,260,912 | 7,108,067
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Pension benefit commltments. Wuh the realignment of the German pension plan of Siemens
AG into a Defined Contribution Beneflt Plan (BSAV), the system of defined benefits for members
of the Managing Board was also :Ieplélced with effect from October 1, 2004 by a pension benefit
system hased on contributions b .r the Company. Pension benefits earned through September
30, 2004 were not affected. The amount of the contributions to the BSAV is determined annual-
ly by the Chairman’s Commntee!{:f the Supervisory Board.

For fiscal year 2006, the mem1|3ers of the Managing Board were granted contributions under
the BSAV totaling €4.2 million (2 305 €3.4 million), based on a resolution adopted by the Chair-
man's Committee of the Supems.ory. Board on November 7, 2006. Of this amount, €0.7 million
relates to funding of pension c01nmi1ments earned prior 1o transfer to the BSAV and the
remaining €3.5 million to contri:l{auti!ons granted under the BSAV,

The projected benefit obligation (PBO) of all pension commitments to members of the
Managing Board as of Septembe"r 30, 2006 amounted 1o €54.8 million (2005 €52.9 million),
which amount is included in Nole 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Former members of the Manz gmg Board and their surviving dependents received emalu-
ments within the meaning of § 314 (1), no. 6 b of the HGB, totaling €14.4 million (2005: €15.6
million) for the year ended Sept -mbler 30, 2006.

The projected benefit obligat on (PBO) of all pension commitments to former members of
the Managing Board and their survwmg dependents as of September 30, 2006 amounted to
€125.6 million (2005: €128.9 l'lll] ion), which is included in Note 21 to the Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements.

Other. No loans from the Company are provided to members of the Managing Board.

'® The amounts far 2006 shown in this table are thas«: obtained after reducing the stock-based compensation in cannection with the 1ransfer of Managing
Board remuneration to the hardship fund for Ben@ Mabile employees in Germany. The fair value of stack-based compensation relates to stock options and
stock awards granted in November 2006 and 2005 for fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively.

@ After a holding period of four years, the siock awards will e settled on November 10, 2010 (awards granted for fiscal year 2005 on November 11, 2009}
Under the stock award agreement, the eligible reci nenls will receive a carresponding number of Siemens shares without additicnal payment.

9 The stock options issued for fiscal year 2005 will bs enemsabha after a halding period of two years between Navember 19, 2007 and Novemnber 18, 2010 a1
a price of €74.59 per share under the terms and cmdmcns specified in the 2001 Siemens Stack Option Plan. The fair value of the stock options was deter-
mined using the Black-Scholes apticn pricing modél. Because a cap was placed on stock options granted to Managing Board members, disclosure of stock
options in the financial statements depends on thelr intrinsic value, which was zero on the grant date. Withou a cap, the fair value of the stock aptions
granted for fiscal year 2605 would have been €4. O 5 per op!lon which amount was taken as the basis in this table.

“) On January 27, 2005, Prof. Dr. Henrich v. Pierer wa: .e'\ected to the Supervisory Board of Siemens AG. Or. Klaus Kleinfeld was appointed 1o succeed
Pred, Dr. Heinrich v. Pierer as CEO and President uflhe Managing Board of Siemens AG, effeclive January 27, 2005.

 Joe Kaeser was appointed a fult member of the Ma \agmg Board of Siemens AG, effective May 1, 2006.

) Heinz-Joachim Neubdrger resigned from the Mana jing Board on April 30, 2006.

7 Eduardo Mantes and Prof. Dr. Hermannm Requardt v ere appointed deputy members of the Managing Board of Slemens AG, effective May 1, 2006,

™ paputy members of the Managing Board. Prof. Dr.[ 4ermann Requardt was appainted a full ber of the M g Board of Siemens AG, effective
October 1, 2006.

1
|

o
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2. Supervisory Board remuneration
i

The remuneration of Ithe members of
Shareholders’ Meetinb through share
Supervisory Boards. Details of the rem
Siemens AG. :

The remuneration of the members
the assignments and 'responsibilities
overall business position and perform
the remuneration includes variable cd

!
l
|
i
1
t
a
|
{

nl
the Superwsory Board was determined at the Annual

1Dlder appm\(al of a proposal by the Managing and
uneratmn are set forth in the Articles of Association of

I
of lhe Superwsory Board is based on the Company's size,
of the Supemsory Board members, and the Coempany'’s
ance, [n addition to a fixed compensation component,

mpensatit‘)n based on the Company's short-lerm and

long-term performance. The Chairmapn, the Dep tyl Chairmen, as well as the Chairman and the

members of the Audit Committee rece

The current remuneration policies
Sharehoiders' Meeting of January 27, 2
tion of Siemens AG.

I
As a result, the remuneration of Super;
components: |
» afixed compensation component,

jve a;ddititma;] compensation.
for the Supervisory Board were authorized at the Annual

005.' Details are set out in § 17 of the Articles of Associa-
I

!
visoll'y Board imembc-:rs for fiscal year 2006 includes three

Lo

s ashort-term compensation compo
= along-term compensation compo
In accordance WithF these remuner.
fixed compensation of €50,000 per ye
for each €0.01 of earnmgs per share
excess of a minimum amount of €1.0.
10 percent, begmmng with the fiscaly

]

[ |

ent based on earnings per share, and
ent based on earnings per share.

ion policies, 'each Supervisory Board member receives
rand shoxl't-term variable compensation of €150 per year
dlsclosed in'the Consolidated Financial Statements in
This mmlmum amount will be increased annually by
ar Startmg on October 1, 2005, In addition, long-term

compensation in the amount of €50,000 is granted |pavable after expiration of the then appli-
cable flve-year term of the Superviso Board. This long -term compensation will only be paid if
earnings per share at the end of the S pemsor}"Board s term of office have increased by more
than 50 percent compared to the begi mng of the term of office. Earnings per share, on which
the calculation of the Supemsory Board’s remuneratmn is based, has to be adjusted for signifi-
cant extracrdinary 1tems For fiscal yedr 2006 the Supemsory Board’s remuneration was deter-
mined on the basis of earnmgs per share m the amc!)unt of €3.40. The Chairman of the Super-
visory Board receives double and eac Depuly Chairman 1.5 times, the amounts of the fixed
compensation and the short-term varighle compensation of an ordinary member. Each mem-
ber of the committees and additionally the cham‘nen of these committees (in each case other
than the Chairman's Commlttee the edlanon Cnmmmee and the Ownership Rights Commii-

|
tee) each receive an addmonal half of the fixed and the short-term variable compensation. The
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2006 - 2005
Short! | Long- Short-  Long-
term, | term term term

Fixed varialde | variable Fixed variable  wvariable

com- com-l! i com- com- oom- com- .
(Amounts in €) pensation pensition  pensation Total | pensation pensation pensation Total
Dr. Karl-Hermann ‘
Baumann 2 - - - - 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Prof. Dr. Heinrich “ ‘r
v. Pierer("® 125,000 86,250, -1 211,250 93,750 42,750 - 136,500
Ralf Heckmann'? 100,000  69/poD -| 160,000 | 100,000 45600 - | 145600
Or. Josef Ackermann® 75000  51!750! -| 128750 83,333 38000 - 121,333
Lothar Adler 50,000  34!500° - 84,500 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Gerhard Bieletzki 50,000  34!500, - 84,500 50,006 22,800 - 72,800
John David Coombe 50,000 34500, - 84,500 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Hildegard Cornudet 50,000 34,500 - 84,500 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Dr. Gerhard Cromme®™ 100,000 69,000 - | 1e9.000| 87500 39,900 —| 127,400
Birgit Grube 50,000 34500, - 84,500 50,000 22,800 - 72.800
Heinz Hawreliuk® 75000 511750 -| 128750 75000 34,200 - 109, 200
Berthold Huber 50,000 34500 - 84,500 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Prof. Dr. Walter Krall 50,000  34.500! - 84,500 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Wolfgang Milller 50,000 34,500, - 84,500 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Georg Nassauer 50,000  34.500' - 84,500 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Thomas Rackow™ 37,500 25875} - 63,375 - - - -
Dr. Albrecht Schmidt 50,000 34,500 - 84,500 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Dr. Henning i
Schulte-Noelle® 75,000  51.750, - 126,750 75,000 34,200 - 109,200
Peter von Siemens 50,000 34500 - 84,300 56,000 22,800 - 72,800
Jerry I. Speyer 50,000  34/500 - 84,500 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Lord lain Vallance |
of Tumme! 50,000 34_!5007 - 84,500 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Klaus Wigand® 16,667  11/500 - 28,167 50,000 22,800 - 72,800
Total 1,254,167  865[375, - | 2,119,542 | 1,264,583 576,650 - | 1.841,233

i T

@ Prof. Or. Heinrich v. Pierer, former CEQG and Plesider]inf the Managing Board ol Siemens AG, succeeded Dr. Karl-Hermann Baumann as Chairman of the
Supervisary Board, effective January 27, 2005. [

@ Each of Prof, Dr, Heinrich v. Pierer as Chairman of th e Supervisory Board and a member of the Audit Commitiee; Dr. josef Ackermann as Deputy Chairman
of the Supervisory Board; Dr. Gerhard Cromme as Chairman cf the Audit Committee; Ralf Heckmann as Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board and
a member of the Audit Committee; and Heirz Haw eliuk and Dr. Henning Schulte-Noelle as members of the Audit Committee, received higher fixed and
variable compensation, i \
For his period of office on the Supervisary Board, Dr, Karl-Hermann Baumann, as former Chairman of the Supervisary Board and the Audit Committee,
also received higher compensatian on 3 pre-rata b isis in the priar year. The same applies to Dr. Josef Ackermann as a former member of the Audit
Committee, i ‘

9 Thomas Rackow, formerly a substitute member of the Supervisary Board of Siemens AG, became a member af the Supervisory Board as a successor (&
Klaus Wigand with effect from January 26,2006, il 4
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members of the Supervisory Board arp rei{mbur sed for any out-of-pocket expenses incurred
in connection with their duties and for any sales takes to be paid on their remuneration. The
Chairman of the Superwsory Board i provic}ed a company carand an office with secretarial

services.

An egusting agreer'nent with Peter vion Slemer‘ls vlva.s renewed after the Annual Shareholders’
Meeting 2003 with unchanged terms and condltlons under which he, as a member of the
founder’s family, is entitled to reimnbursement olf e;{penses and the provision of a company car
and office with secretarial services forjrepresenting the Comipany at official evenis in Germany
and abroad, as well as in various asso iatic?ns. '

No loans from the Company are pr nvidgd to members of the Supervisory Board.

| 1
]
'
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4 3. Stock ownership by memberii of the Managing and Supervisory Boards
| .!'_ H i
. Asof October 13, 2006, Managlnji Board members serving on the heard during the fiscal year
held a total of 1,338,539 (2005: 1, 04 459) Siemens shares and stock options on Siemens shares,
s representing 0.150 percent (2005 0.124 percent} of the capital stock of Siemens AG. As of the
same day, members of the Superyisory Board serving on the board during the fiscal year held
177,019 (2005: 185,544) Siemens ‘hares and stock options on Siemens shares, representing
0.020 percent (2005: 0.021 percem) of the capital stock of Siemens AG. These figures do not
i include 10,607,390 (2005: 10,786 ‘)21) shares, or 1.2 percent (2005: 1.2 percent) of the capital
stock that are held by the von Sie, nens-Vermogensverwahung GmbH (¥vSV) - a German limited
liability entity that functions mu: h hke a trust - and 39,144,979 (2005: 38,102,921) shares, or
some 4.4 percent (2005: 4.3 percﬂm) of the capital stock, over which the vSV has voting control
under a power of attorney. Peter von Siemens is authorized to vote these shares as a representa-

tive of the founder's family. ,

4. Other

The members of the governing bodies of Siemens AG and all board members of its domestic
and foreign subsidiaries are md!-mmf:ecl by Siemens AG or its subsidiaries against third-
party liability claims to the extert permmed by law. For this purpaose, the Company provides

a group insurance policy for boa rd and committee members and employees of the Siemens
organization which is taken ouli ‘or one year and renewed annually. The insurance covers the
personal liability of the insured in the case of a financial loss associated with employment func-
tions. In such a case, the Compaly may, with effect from October 1, 2005, hold members of the
Managing Board liable for such loss up to an amount equivalent to 20 percent of the fixed
salary. [n the same way, each me"nber of the Supervisory Board has individually agreed to be
held liable up to an amount equlvalent to 20 percent of the fixed compensation component (i.e.,
a deductible within the meamng of Section 3.8, para. 2, of the German Corporate Governance
Code) |
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We're makihg our
customers fit for
the future.

Conserving natural resources

Protecting the environment

Providing high-quality,
affordable healthcare

Optimizing mobility

Meeting increasing security

needs
|
|

!
Adapting to shifts in the
global economy '

y

aToday, urbamzanon and demographlc change are “already
shapmg our.lives and the world we live in. in'the future,
these megatrends are destined to créate major challenges:

) shortages of . natural resources, increasing enwronmental

burdens a reg|onal shift in the center,of economic gravity
and a growmg demand for’ everythmg from hearthcare and
eidercare 1o mobitity and security;

4 . 7 .

Siemegs i5 better positioned than any other company 1o

equip its customers - and their customers - to meet and

masterthese challenges. '
1

As global consumption increases, reserves of cil,
water and iron are sieadily diminishing. Qur tech 1 5<¥PG]
no1og|es are making the extraction and use of these 57D
key nagural resources more efficient. OSRAM

|

f

1
Eco-friendly technologles are needed to combat ch-
mate change and the i increasing pollution of our soil,
air and water. We comply with the strictest environ-
mentaliregulations and develop products and solu-
tions that protect the environment and help reduce
harmful emissions.

As the \!Norld ‘s population grows and ages, the
demand for efficient healthcare is increasing. Our
solutions optimize the processes essential for premi-
um, cost-effectwe diagnosis, ireatment ang

follow }.Ip care,

\

in toda)’r's globatized world, mobility s vital for eco-
nomic growth and prosperity. Our offerings are
maklnthransportatlon faster and safer and enabling
compargies to transport goods more efficiently.

f

! 1

g g

Securit)i is a.basic prerequisite for a globally net-

worked|economy. Our products and solutions maxi-
mize p(_a!rsciha! sa){‘ety ar?d guarantee the free and %
secure f'low of goods, data and capital. GSRAM
: COmRSES)
;]
Wl
The center of economic gravity is shifting to the an
developing world. Due to their rapid economic Siemens]
grow't'nl countries ke Brazil, Russia, India and-China IGToups)

afe key future markets. Our global presence enables

usto serve customers opnmaliy on a local basis. As
ajgcod corporate citizen, we're a respected member

of sociely in all the countries where we do business.

.
b
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Automation and Contr:ol

Busingess Areas

69

Automation and Drives (A&D') |

A&D supplies standard produds for the manufacturing and proc-
essing industries, electrical insfallation technology, and system-
and sector-specific automatlon”sol.unons

Portfolio

- Automation systems
- Drives technology (electrical and mechanlcal)
- Motion cantrol systems

- Electrical installation technalogy
- Low-voltage controls and distribution
- Process automation ‘
- Process analysis ‘
- Sensor systems !
- Measuring and test systems
- Industrial communication/networks |
— Safety engineering
- Industrial IT

|
1
t
t
)
1
1

www.siemens.cam/
automation

Industrial Solutions and Servlices (1&S)

1&S increases the competitiveness of customers in over 70 coun-
tries by combining Siemens pr:lnducts and process technologies to
offer comprehensive solutions. and services for industrial plants
and infrastructure systems. i

Portfolio i

— Water and wastewater systems

— intelligent traffic systems

— Opencast mining, iron and stee! '

— Marine engineering

- Oil and gas .

- Pulp and paper i

— Plants and systems for postal serwces alutomation

- Airport logistics and airfield I|ght|nc| l
l
|

- Engineering, commissioning
— Plant maintenance and modermzamn

i
'

www.siemens.com/
industry
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Automation and Control

l

I
r
)
www.siemens.com/ }

“buildingtechnologies

]
1

Siemens Bu lldlng Technologles (S8T) , :

SBT cooperates Iclcusely with customers to create fire safety and -
energy management solutions that make buildings safer, more
efficient and more comfortable throughout their entire lifecycles.

Portfolio

- Systemns and products for controlling heating, ventilation and air-conditioning
systems

- Services for boosting energy efficiency

- Fire protection and gas alarm systems and products

- Electronic security solutions and products for identification and access
control, video surveillance and intrusion protection




Power

Business Areas

/1

Power Generation (PG) '

PG develops and builds fossil fuet power plants and power-gener-
ating components as well as w'md jturbines and turbines for use
as mechanical drives and compressors for industrial applications.
Instrumentation and control systems fuel cell technology and
extensive services round out te G Group's portfolio.

Portfolio

~ Power plants, combined cycle syste ms, gas turbines, steam turbines
and generators :

- Industrial power plants and combir ed heat and power plants

- Drive units and compressors I :

— Instrumentation and control systers and IT solutions

- Services

~ Fuel cell power plants

— Wind power plants

www.siemens.com/
powergeneration

|
|
|

Power Transmission and Dist ilbuthﬂ (PTD)

PTD is a world leader in power] transm|ssuon and distribution. As
a systems integrator and supplier of products, services and com-
plete solutions, the Group ena bles utilities and energy-intensive
manufacturers to transport ani dlstrrbute electricity economi-
cally and reliably.

!

!

Portfolio |

- Turnkey solutions for electric power transmlssron and distribution

- High-voltage and medium- voltage swnchgear and components

- Power transformers and dlstrlbutlon transformers : .
- High-voltage direct-current transmlssron technology

- Pratection and substation control systems

— Network control systems and IT solutlolns for the power industry

- Power services

|

|

|
: | -
; -‘ll .

!

|

|

www.siemens.com/
energy
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Transportation

www.siemens.com/
transportation

Transportation Systems (TS)

As a full-range supplier and systems integrator, TS is a leader in
the international rail industry. The Group's activities in the areas
of automation and power, rolling stock, turnkey systems and
integrated services encompass operations management, rail
electrification systems and vehicles for mass transit, regional
and mainline systems.

Portfolio

— Operations control systems

- Rail electrification

- Turnkey rail systems

- Vehicles for mass transit, regional and mainline systems
- Services

www.siemensvdo,com

Siemens VDO Automotive (5V)

SV technology is shaping the future of automobile travel. As a
trusted partner to the car industry, the Group develops and pro-
duces electronic and mechatronic systems and components for
powertrain and engine control systems, chassis electronics and
safety and driver assistance systems as well as information, com-
munications and multimedia systems. Its products are making
automobiles safer, more comfortable, more economical and
more eco-friendly.

Portfolio

- Engine and transmission management systems

- Injection systems

- Car body and chassis electronics

- Safety and driver assistance systems

- Information, communications and multimedia systems




Medical f

«

| Business Areas

/3

Medical Solutions (Med)

;
l www.siemens.com/

Med will soon be the first healthcare supplier to provide a full medical
range of diagnostics procedurej's feiaturing all key in-vitro and

in-vivo technologies. Networke_;d on the Soarian and syngo IT

platforms, the Group’s compre!lnensive offerings have enabled

it to capture a strong position i its market.

Portfolio

- IT solutions

- Magnetic resonance imaging

- Computed tomography

— Angiography systems

- Roentgen and imaging systems
- Ultrasound systems

— Molecular imaging and nuclear mec
- In-vitro diagnostics

- Radiation therapy systems
— Urology systems

- Mammography systems

- Electromedical systems

- Audiological systems

- Vacuum technology

-~ Components

icine systems
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Information and Communications

www.siemens.com/
communications .

Communications {Com)

Com provides network operators and enterprise customers with
the high-quality communications solutions they need to reach
their business goals. As an innovation leader in mebile communi-
cations infrastructure and,fixed and enterprise networks, the
Group is making voice and data communications easier and more
efficient.

Portfolio

Carrier business
- Infrastructure, applications and turnkey solutions for mobile, fixed and
cable network operators and serwce providers

- End-to-end solutions for flxeq molblle convergence

- Comprehensive services for network operators

Enterprise business

— IP-based real-time communications systems, applications and solutions
for businesses of all sizes '

- Broad portfolio of end-user cornmjunications equipment

- Comprehensive service offerings for enterprise customers

Wireless modules

- Wireless modules for machme -to-machine communications,
mobile end-user equipment alnd automotive solutions

- Machine-ta-machine communications solutions

- Worldwide support for integration:and licensing processes

www.siemens,com/
sbs

Siemens Business ServiCtIas (5BS)
SBS offers private- and publn: sector customers a full range of mul-
ti-vendor IT selutions and’ serwces - ranging from consulting and
systems integration to IT infrastructure management. The Group
specializes in solutions for.lmanufactunng, infrastructure and serv-
ice providers, the public sector, healthcare and the service indus-
try. f
Portfolio l
- Strategic consulting on the plannlng and roflout of innovative IT solutions to
ensure efficient business processes and ease integration into existing system
environments
- Optimization and management of busrness processes, IT infrastructure trans-
formation '
— [T infrastructure management and outsourcing
— Helpdesk and security solutions, IT;infrastructure conselidation
A [
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Siemens IT Solutions and Serlificés (51S)

In January 2007, the activities of SBS will be combined with those
I

of four 1T companies and softw are houses (Program and System

Engineering of Austria, S|emens Information Systems Ltd. of India,

Development Innovation and FI’OJECtS of Greece and the Business

Innovation Center in Swutzerland) to form a single Group.

Portfolio |

-~ Expansion of the offerings of all Sie:mens Groups to include 1T expertise

— Development of IT operator and solutions businesses with external customers
— Qperation of Siemens’ internal IT ‘

Lighting

OSRAM WwWw.asram.com

OSRAM's product portfolio corpprises everything from lamps and

optoelectronic semiconductorl. such as light-emitting diodes

{LEDs) to electronic control gear and light management systems.

'

Portfolio [

— Incandescent lamps |

- Halogen lamps

~ Fluorescent lamps j

- Compact fiuorescent lamps

- Halogen vapor lamps ’

- Sodium lamps “

- Vehicle lamps F

— Lamps for displays, enlertamment and cinema

- Lamps for the semiconductor indu! .try and healthcare

- Electronic control gear

- LEDs, LED systems, organic hght-emlttlng diodes (OLEDs),
infrared components, high- perforrnance laser diodes

- Light management systems |f !

|
f
I
b
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Financing and Real Estate

www.siemens.com/
financialservices

Siemens Financial Ser\nces (SFS)

With some 1,800 employeles and an international network of
companies, SFS offers a broad array of financial solutions in the
areas of sales and mvestment fmancmg treasury services, fund
management and i insurance.

Portfolio

- Asset finance and leasing
- Receivables financing

- Asset-based lending

- Praject and equity investment
- Project and export financing
- Investment management

- Industrial insurance solutions
— Private financing solutions

— Treasury and financing services

www.siemens.com)
realestate

Siemens Real Estate (SRE)

SRE currently manages around 42 million square meters of land
and 20 million square meters of building space at more than
3,000 |locations around th('e world. As a real estate specialist,
SRE plans, builds, finances and develops Siemens facilities and
advises and supports customers in all matters relating to real
estate. !

Portfolio !

— Real estate rental and leasing ;

- Account and buitding management

— Regional location and property plannmg
- Real estate and location valuations

- Workstation concepts
- Service management
~ Portfolio management and analysi§

- Real estate consulting !

- Land and property development

- Architecture and project management
- Commercialization
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Affiliates

/7

BSH Bosch und Siemens Haus
Offering a full range of high- peI
to-use household appliances, B
world’s leading manufacturers
plier in Germany and Western El

Portfolio

- Stoves and ovens

- Dishwashers

~ Washing machines

- Dryers

- Refrigerators

- Freezers

- Floorcare appliances

- Consumer products

— Network-enabled appliances

Seréite GmbH

;'for‘mance convenient and easy-
osch und Siemens is one of the
)f white goods and the No. 1 sup-
urope.

www.bsh-group.com

Fujitsu Siemens Computers (
Fujitsu Siemens Computers, a ](
Siemens AG, is Europe’s Ieadmc
prise customers and individual

IT products, services and infras
Portfolio k
- IT infrastructure selutions and servig
- Server platforms (industry-standard

mainframes)
- Company-wide storage solutions
- Professional PCs and workstations

iolding) BV

int venture of Fujitsu Ltd. and

IT manufacturer, offering enter-
Jsers a wide range of advanced
‘ructure solutions.

es .
! Unix- and Linux-based servers,

- Mobility salutions (handhelds note
- Products and solutions for the dlgml

|

i :

.)OOkS pen tablets)
-*I home

{ 3

www.fujitsu-
siemens.com
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Summary Financial Results

Siemens in fiscal 2006 {October 1, 20G5 to Septernber 30, 2006)

® Netincome was €3.033 billion and earnings per
share were €3.40, both 35% higher than a year ear-
lier. Income on a continuing basis was €3.087 bil-
lion, up 1%.

B Sales rose 16%, to €87.325 billion, on a balance ol
organic growth and acquisitions, and orders
increased 15%, Lo €96.259 billion.

& Ona continuing basis, net cash provided by oper-
ating and investing activities was €739 million in
fiscal 2006 compared to net cash used of €1.489 bil-
lion a year earlier.

8 Siemens management proposes a dividend of
€1.45 per share compared to €1.35 per share a year
earlier.

“We achieved a great deal in an eventful year, particu-
larly in shaping Slemens for profitable growth,” said
Siemtens CEO Klaus Kleinfeld. “We executed a major part
of our strategic reorientation of Information and Com-
munications and Logistics and Assembly Systems while
bujlding on our strengths with focused acquisitions in
energy, industrial automation, and healthcare. Sales and
order growth for the year confirmed that our portfolio is
well aligned with customer demands. In fiscal 2007, we
expect topline growth at double the rate of global gross
domestic product growth, adjusted for divestments. We
also expect all our Groups te reach their target margins.
We are positioned more strongly than ever (o achieve
this goal and bring the benefits to our botiom line.”

For fiscal 2006, ended September 30, 2006, Siemens
reported net income of €3.033 billion, up 35% compared
to €2.248 billion a year earlier. Basic and diluted earn-
ings per share rose to €3.40 and €3.26, respectively,
from €2.52 and €2.42 a year earliet. Income from contin-
uing operations was €3.087 billion, a 1% increase from
€3.058 billion a year earlier. Basic and diluted earnings
per share from continuing operations were €3.47 and
€3.31, respectively. A year earlier, hasic and diluted earn-
ings per share from continuing operations were €3.43
and €3.29, respectively.

A mamnty of the Groups in Operations posted higher
pmﬂ(s year-over-year. Major earnings contributions
came from Automation and Drives (A& D), Medical Solu-
lions {Med), Power Generation {PG), Siemens YDO Auto-
muuve (5V), Osram, and Power Transmissien and Distri-
bution (PI‘D) Severance charges al Communications
(Com) were higher year-over-year, at €393 million com-
pared to €113 million. This rise was partially offset by
higher gains on sales of shares in Juniper Networks, Inc.
(Juniper), which increased to €356 million in fiscal 2006
I'rohl €208 million a year earlier. Severance charges rose
at Siemens Business Services (SBS) as well, totaling €393
mllllun compared to €228 million. A year earlier, SBS
alsu took a goodwill impairment of €262 million, The net
efrecl of severance, Juniper gains and the goodwill
lmpalrment was a negative €430 million in liscal 2006 |
compared to a negative €395 million in the prior year.

Income before income taxes from our Financing and
Real Estate business was €429 million compared (o €463
mlllmn ayear earlier. Corporate Treasury activities con-
(nbuted €289 million income before income taxes in the
curmm period compared to €298 million in fiscal 2005.

Sa]es of €87.325 billion rose 16% year-over-year, led by
douhle -digit sales growth at A&D, Industrial Solutions
anq Services (1&%), PG and PTD. Orders increased 15%, to
€96.259 billion, on strong demand at the Groups men-
uuned above as well as Siemens Building Technologies
{SBT) and Transportation Systems (TS). Growth through
acqulsmons included Electrium Limited at A&D,
Wheelahratormr Pellution Control, Inc. at PG, and Diag-
nosuc Products Corporation (DPC) at Med, all in liscal
2006 as well as VA Technologie AG (VA Tech), Flender
Huldmg GmbH and Robicon Corp., all acquired late in
fiscal 2065. Sales and orders in fiscal 2006 also reflect
s:gplﬂcant divestments, primarily the Product Related
Servir:es {PRS) business at SBS and Dematic GmbH & Ca.
KG (Dematlc) adistribution and industry logistics busi-
ness held within Other Operations. Excluding the net
effect of acquisitions and dispositions and currency
translation effects, growth for Siemens worldwide on an
organic basis was 8% in sales and 6% in orders. From a
gedgraphic perspective, international markets were the
prlmary source of topline growth in fiscal 2006, includ-
mg a19% rise in sales and an 18% increase in orders,
Sales and orders in Germany rose 4% and 1%, respec-
tively, compared to the prior year.




On a eontinning basis, operating and mvesnng activi-
ties within Operations provided net cash uf€623 million
in fiscal 2006 compared to net cash used cf €1.222 bil-
fion in fiscal 2005. Outilows for acqulsmons and invest-
ments totaled approximately €2.4 billion,! 1) !neluding
approximately €1.3 billion to acquire DPC in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006, Cash used for ncqulsmnns and
investments a year earlier totaled apprommately €3.0
billion, primarily for the fiscal 2005 acquumons men-
tioned above, While fiscal 2006 benefited I Tom €1.127
billion in proceeds from the sale of 'ileme 1s remaining
shares in Infineon Technologies AG (lnﬁneon) fiscal
2005 included €1.496 billion in cash used'!’or supple-
mental contributions to $iemens penslon plans. Both
periods included significant cash used fol Fnel working
capitat associated with business growth. Severance pay-
ments at Com and $BS used €612 million in the current
period, compared to €171 million a year e:!rtler. within
Financing and Real Estate and Corporale j‘reasury activ-
ities, net cash from operating and investillg activities
was €116 million compared to a negative (2267 million a
year earlier. For Siemens on a continuing bams net cash
from operating and investing activities wil is €739 million
in fiscal 2006 compared to net cash used f €1.489 bil-
lion a year earlier. .
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Operations in fiscal 2006

Information and Communications
Communications {Com)

Year ended September 30,
% Change
(€ in millions) 2006 2005  Actual Adjusted*
Group profit 283 421 (33)%
Group prefit margin 2.2% 3.5%
Sales 13,080 12,201 7% 4%
New arders 13,571 12,869 5% 2%

* Excluding currency translation effects of 2% on sales and
orders, and portfolio effects of 1% on sales and orders,

Sales at Com rose 7% compared to fiscal 2005, to
€13.080 billion, and orders were up 5%, a1 €13.571 bil-
lion. Group profit was €283 million compared to €421
million a year earlier, as severance charges increased to
€393 million from €113 million a year earlier. This rise
was partly offset by higher gains on sales of Juniper
shares, which were €356 million compared to €208 mil-
lion a year earlier. Profitability improved significantly in
the carrier business, where sales rose to €9.819 billion
from €8.867 billion a year earlier, In contrast, the enter-
prise business saw sales decline to €3.338 hillion from
€3.455 billion, and posted a larger loss than in the prior
year. As part of its previously announced severance pro-
gram, the enterprise business tock the majority of the
charges mentioned above,

Siemens Business Services (SBS)

Year ended September 30,
% Change
(€ in miligns) 2006 2005 Actual  Adjusted”
Group profit (549) {690) 20%
Group profitmargin_ (10.6)% (12.8)%
Sales 5157 5,373 {4)% 2%
New orders 5014 6,531 {(23)% (16)%

* Excluding currency transtation effects of 1% on sales and
arders, and portfolio effects of (7)% and (B)% on sales and
orders, respectively.

SBS narrowed its loss year-over-year o €549 million,
including €393 million in $everance charges. For com-
parison, the prior year included a goodwill impairment
of €262 million in the Operation Related Services (ORS)
business and €228 million in severance charges, only
partly offset by a €26 million gain on the sale of an
investment. As part of its strategic reorientation, SBS
divested its PRS business midway through the fiscal year.
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Fiscal 2006 sales of €5,157 billion were consequently
lower than the level a year earlier. Orders of €5,014 bil-
lion were also lower than the prior-year level, due to the
PRS divestment as well as more selective order intake
and a reduction in major orders year-over-year.

Automation and Control
Automation and Drives (A&D)

Year ended September 30,
% Change
{€ in millions) 2006 2005 Actual  Adjusted*
Group profit 1,572 1,253 5%
Groupprofitmargin~ 12.2%  12.1%
Sales 12,848 10,366 4% 9%
New orders 14,108 10,674 32% 13%

* Excluding currency translation effects of 2% on sales and
orders, and portfolio effacts of 13% and 7% on sates and
orders, respectively.

Beginning in fiscal 2006, A&D includes the Electron-
ics Assembly Systems division on a retroactive basis, 1o
present a meaningful comparison with prior periods.
The division was [ormerly part of the Logistics and
Assembly Systems Group (L&A}, which was dissolved as
of the beginning of fiscal 2006.

AS&D delivered Group profit of €1.572 billion, up 25%
compared to the prior year even as the Group made sig-
nificant investments to build up distribution in major
growth markets. Acquisitions made late in fiscal 2005
and early fiscal 2006 contributed to earnings growth for
the year. Sales for fiscal 2006 overall rose 24%, to
£12.848 billion, and orders climbed 32%, to €14.108 bil-
lion, as the Group added acquired volume to organic
growth on a Group-wide basis. Demand was well distrib-
uted regionally, including topline growth in Asia-Pacific
well above 50% year-over-year.

Inqustriél Solutions and Services (I1&S)

t Year ended September 30,
l s % Change
{€ in millions} 2006 2005 Actual  Adjusted*
Group profit 289 167 T3%
Group profit margin 3.3% 2.6%
Sales . 8,819 6,307 40% 14%
New orders 9,025 7,189 26% (2)%

* éxcluding currency translation effects of 2% on sales and
orders and portfolio effects of 24% and 26% an sales and
arders, respectively.

|

Begmmng in fiscal 2006, 1&S includes the Airpornt
Logistics and Postal Automation divisions, farmerly of
L&A, on a retroactive basis.

Group profit at 125 rose to €289 million, up 73% com-
pafcd to the prior year, due primarily to the metallurgy
busmess included in the VA Tech acquisition in the
t'uurth quarter of fiscal 2005. Profitability improved in
parl due to sales channel synergy associated with the
acqulsmon Sales for the fiscal year rose 40%, to €8.819
billion, including double-digit organic growth, and
nrdcrs were up 26%, at €6.025 billion. For comparison,
lhc prior year included a particularly large order in the
fourth quarter,

|
Siep‘:ens Building Technologies (SBT)

i Year ended September 30,
| % Change
(€ in millicns) 2006 2005 Actual  Adjusted*
Group profit 234 181 29%
Group profit margin 4.9% 4.1%
Sales . 4,796 4,415 9% 7%
New orders 5.235 4,518 16% 13%

N Excludlng currency translation effects of 1% and 2% on sales
and orders, respectively, and portfolio effects of 1% on sales
and orders.

In fiscal 2006, SBT continued to improve its profitabil-
iny, poslmg a 29% increase in Group profit to €234 mil-
]mn The Group's fire safety and security business con-
mhuted strongly to the increase in Group profit. Sales
for‘the year rose 9% compared to the prior year, to
€4.796 billion, and orders climbed 16% to €5.235 billion.
All 1he Groups divisions contributed to business growth,
lncludmg greater penetration of their installed base and
$uccess in services.




Power i‘* ‘
Power Generation (PG)
Year endied September 30,

|1 % Change
(€ in millions) 2006 2005  Actwal | Adjusted®
Group prafil 782 951 (18)%
Group profit margin 78% 11.B% il
Sales 10,086 8,061 125% 19%
New orders 12,532 10,964 14% | 5%

* Exduding currency translation effects of 1% nr| sales and
orders, and portfolio effects of 5% and 8% on iiales and orders,
respectively.

A combination of locuged acguisitions lind robust
organic growth, particularly in the fossil ;'nweg' genera-
tion business, generated a 25% increase il:l sales year-
over-year, to €10.086 billion. Orders of €1:%.532 billion
were up 14% compared to fiscal 2005, incliding a very
large power generation contract in the Muldle East. The
wind power business significantly mcrea‘ed its earn-
ings and profit margin, and won two largd- U.5. contracts
that nearly tripled orders year-over-year. i he fossil pow-
er generation business saw a significant dechne inearn-
ings, due in part 1o the bankruptcy of a co! ‘lsomum part-
ner and charges related to major pro]ects in addition,
equity earnings from PG's stake ina Fumpean]oml ven-
mre declined by €106 millien and turned uegauve
These factors limited Group profit for PG merall o €782
million compared to €951 million a year eiri:er While
PG expects i1s earnings margin (o return io the target
range in fiscal 2007, the earnings VOI([II]]I]‘Of equiry
investments could continue to alfect the € roup’s prof-
itability.
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Power Transmission and Distribution (PTD)

Year ended September 30,
% Change
(€ in millions) 2006 2005 Actual  Adjusted*
Group profit 390 212 84%
Group profit margin 6.0% 5.0%
Sales 6,509 4,250 53% 27%
New orders 8,028 5,283 52% 29%

* Excluding currency translation effects of 3% and 4% on sales
and orders, respectively, and portfolio effects of 23% and 19%
on sales and orders, respectively.

In fiscal 2006, PTD recorded rapid growth in Group
profit, sales and orders in a strong global market for
secure, high-efficiency power transmission and distri-
bution, Group profit rose 84%, to €390 million for the
year, as PTD teveraged improved operating performance
into a much larger revenue base resulting from its por-
tion of the VA Tech acquisition. Sales rose 53%, to €6.509
billion, and orders increased 52%, to €8.028 billion, on a
balance of Group-wide organic growth and acquired vol-
ume.

Transportation
Transportation Systems (TS)

Year ended September 30,

% Change
(€in millions) 2006 2005  Actual  Adjusted*
Group profit 80 45 78%
Group profit margin 1.8% 1.1%
Sales 4,502 4,190 7% 5%
New orders 6,173 4,599 34% 32%

* Exduding currency translation effects of 1% on orders, and
portfatio effects of 2% and 1% on sales and orders, respectively,

TS posted a solid increase in earnings in fiscal 2006,
on itnproved project execution. Group profit of €80 mil-
lion was up 78% year-over-year, and higher in all four
quarters compared to corresponding periods of fiscal
2005, Broad-based growth increased sales for TS overall
by 7%, 1o €4.502 billion. The Group's order backlog con-
tinued to rise on a 34% increase in orders, to €6.173 bil-
lion, including especially high order volume in the first
quarter. Highlights for the full year include large con-
tracts for trains in China, Russia {including a substantial
maintenance contract), Spain and Austria.
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Siemens VDO Automotive (SV)

Year ended September 30,
% Change
(€ in millions) 2006 2005 Actual  Adjusted*
Group profit 669 630 6%
Group profit margin 6.7% 5.6%
Sales 10,017 9.610 4% 1%
New orders 10,014 9,787 2% (1)%

* Excluding currency translation effects of 2% on sales and
orders, and portfolio effects of 1% on sales and orders.

In fiscal 2006, SV continued to invest in advanced
solutions, such as for hybrid electric vehicles, advanced
driver assistance systems (ADAS) and electronic wedge
brakes, while increasing its competitiveness through
cost-reduction programs. Group profit rose 6%, to €669
million, including both higher research and develop-

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 the Group
ncquimd DPC, a leading provider of in-vitro clinical diag-
nosncs The purchase price for DPC, including cash
acqulred was approximately €1.4 billion. The transac-
uqn closed at the end of July, two months before the end
of Siemens’ fiscal year, During fiscal 2006, Siemens also
annnunced the acquisition of the Diagnostics division of
Bayer AG, which is strongly positioned in the fast-grow-
ing lield of immunodiagnostics. This transaction, with a
purchase price of approximately €4.2 billion, has
reccwed regulatory approval and is expected to close in
lhe ﬁrsl half of fiscal 2007. The two acquisitions substan-
(mllg,r expand Med's total available market and bring the
Grpup new capabilities that are highly complemeniary
to Its existing offerings.

I

ment (R&D) expenses and gains on divestments. Sales Lighting
and orders rose (o €10,017 billion and €10.014 billion, OSRAM
respectively. 1 -
| . Year ended September 30,
i % Change
Medical {€in millicns) 2006 2005 Actual _ Adjusted®
. Group profit 481 465 3%
Medical Solutions (Med) cmug ﬁroﬁl margin__10.5% _ 10.8%
Year ended September 30,  Sales 4,563 4,300 6% 4%
» % Changie New orders 4,563 4,300 6% 4%
(Ein mlllm{ts) 2006 2005 Acwal Adjusted® . Ex:luding currency translation effects of 2% on sales
Group profit 1,061 976 9% and arders,
Group prefit margin 129% 12.8% i
Sales 8,227 7,626 8% 5% “[n fiscal 2006, Osram stepped up its commitment to
New orders 9,334 8,641 8% &% its fastest-growing markets, including an expansion of

* Excluding currency translation effects of 2% and 1% on sales
and orders, respectively, and portfolio effects of 1% on sales
and orders.

Med was again a top earnings performer, with €1.061
billion in Group profit in fiscal 2006. Broad-based earn-
ings increases in the Group's diagnostics imaging busi-
nesses more than offset increases in R&D investments
compared to the prior year. CTI Molecular Imaging, Inc.
(CTI), acquired in the third quarter of fiscal 2005, also
contributed to earnings growth for the year. Sales and
orders both rose B% compared to a year earlier, 1o €8.227
billion and €9.334 billion, respectively.

salcs efforts in Asta-Pacific, and increased up-front
mveslments in innovative products. Group profit rose
Wg Lo €481 million. Szles and orders rose 6%, 10 €4.563
billion, on regionally balanced growth.




N

N
Other Operations E“ ,
Other Operations consist of centrally held operating
businesses not related to a Group, such as )u]nt ventures
and equity investments. In fiscal 2006 (re roacnvely to
fiscal 2005), Other Operations include ‘:le nens home
and offtce communications products unit (SHC) which
was carved out of Com, and Dematic, which was carved
out of the former Logistics and Assembly )ystems
Group. Other Operations also include a pcmon of the VA
Tech acquisition. In aggregate, sales Imm‘ Other Opera-
tions were €4.828 billion compared 10 €4. "20 billion in
the prior year, with VA Tech accounting fo, much of the
increase. Dematic was divested at aloss 0[ €53 million in
the fourth quarter. Group profit [rom Othz-r Operations
was a negative €36 million compared to a posm\.e €76
million a year earlier. Equity mveslmenls weré the main
earnings contributors in both the currenl and prior year,
and Dematic reduced its negative result yl-ar-nver year
despite the loss on the sale. SHC posted ajoss compared
to positive earnings in fiscal 2005.

Corporate items, pensions and eliminations

Corporate items, pensions and e]]mmauons totaled a
negative €1.248 billion in fiscal 2006 com’ )ared (o a neg-
ative €1.072 billion in fiscal 2005. Corporfte itemns were a
negative €616 million in fiscal 2006 comp3 yiredtoa nega-
tive €537 million a year earlier. Within Co 'porate items,
a sighificant investment in information lvchnolugy was
the major [actor in higher central costs in fiscal 2006
compared to the prior year. Corporate itet s benefited in
fiscal 2006 from the sale of an inveslmeni.and settle-
ment of an arbitration proceeding, while ijains on sales
of shares in Infineon and Epcos AG were partly offset by
an impairment on shares in BenQ Cc-rporauon Central-
ly carried pension expense increased to 6198 million
from €519 million a year earlier prlmarll) 'due to are-
duction in the discount rate assumptien ai ‘ieptemher
30, 2005. .

!
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Financing and Real Estate

Siemens Financial Services (SFS}

Year ended Septernber 30,

%
(€inmillians) 2006 2005 Change
Income before income taxes 307 19 (4)%
Total assets 10,522 10,148 4%

Incore before income taxes at SFS was €307 million
in fiscal 2006 compared to €319 million a year earlier.
While both periods included a special dividend related to
an investment, the prior year also benefited from gains
on the sale of an investment and the sale of a 51% stake
in the real estate funds management business of
Siemens Kapitalanlagegesellschaft mbH (SKAG). Total
assets at the end of fiscal 2006 were 4% higher than at
the end of the prior year due to expansion of the leasing
business.

Siemens Real Estate (S5RE)

Year ended September 30,

%
(€in millions) 2006 2005 Change
Income before income taxes 122 144 (15)%
Sales 1,705 1,621 5%
Total assets 3,234 3,496 (7)%

Income before income taxes at SRE was €122 million
in fiscal 2006, compared to €144 million a year earlier.
while gains on sales of real estate increased year-over-
year, SRE's results for the year were influenced by higher
costs for development projects and vacancy, as well as
lower rental income. Total assets declined 7% primarily
due to real estate disposals.
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Eliminations, reclassifications and Corporate Treasury

Income before taxes [rom etiminations, reclassifications
and Corporate Treasury was €289 million compared to
€298 million a year earlier, The difference was mainly
due to negative effects rom derivative activities not
qualifying for hedge accounting at Corporate Treasury,
which more than offset increased interest income from
intra-company financing.

Income statement highlights in fiscal 2006

Net income improved 1o €3.033 billion in fiscal 2006. For
comparison, net income of €2.248 hillion a year earlier
included a less of €816 million on Siemens’ discontinued
mobile devices business. income from continuing opeta-
tions in fiscal 2006 was €3.087 billion, up 1% from
€3.058 billion a year earlier. Gross profit increased 10%
year-over-year, as a majority of the Groups in Operations
increased their earnings. Gross profit margin declined
10 26.9% from 28.2% in fiscal 2005, including higher sev-
erance charges year-over-year at Com and SBS and lower
gross profit at PG due to charges in the project business.
R&D expenses increased to €5.024 biltion from €4.511
biilion a year earlier, particularly including higher out-
lays at Med and A&D. Due to the significant increase of
sales, however, R&D expenses as a percentage of sales
declined to 5.8% from 6.0% a year earlier. Marketing,
selling and administrative expenses rose to €15.470 bil-
lion from €13.684 billion a year ago bu1 decreased as 3
percentage of sales to 17.7% [rom 1B.1% in the prior year.

Other operating income {(expense}, net was €205 mjl-
lion in fiscal 2006 compared to a hegative €9 million in
fiscal 2005. The prior year included the €262 million
goodwill impairment at $BS. The current period includ-
ed a pasitive e[Tect of €70 million from the settlement of
an arbitration proceeding, which more than offset the
loss of €53 million on the Dematic sale. Income from
investments in other companies increased to €647 mil-
lion from €584 million, mainly due to higher gains from
sales of investments in fiscal 2006,

Order and sales trends for fiscal 2006

Orders in fisca) 2006 were €96,259 billion, a 15% in-
crea-;e from €83.791 billion in the prior year. Sales of
687 325 billion were up 16% from €75.445 billion a year
earjler Excluding currency translation effects and the
net efl'ecl of acquisitions and dispositions (on an organic
hasn) order-a climbed 6% and sales rose 8%. Growth was
dnvcn hy international markets, where major orders
werc both numerous and well-distributed. International
nrder'a rose 18% year-over-year, to €79.736 billion and in-
lernauonal sales increased 19%, to €71.080 billion. In
Germany. orders rose 1% and sales increased 4% year-
over-year, lo €16.523 billion and €16.245 billion, respec-
uvely. primarily due to acquisitions between the periods
under review.

lmernauunu]ly, the fastest growth on a regional basis
came in the Middle EastiafricalC1$, where orders rose
35%, to €10.910 billion, and sales climbed 33%, to €8.191
billion. Asia-Pacific orders grew 26%, to €15.058 billion,
and sales increased 28%, to €12.871 billion. India led the
major economies in this region, with orders surging
67%, to €1.962 billion, and sales climbing 47% to €1,202
bllhon China continued to grow rapidly as well, from a
largcr base. Thus erders of €5.089 billion were up 23%
yeu_r over-year, and sales of €4.438 billion were 39%
higher than in the prior year. In the Americas, orders
and sales grew by 16% and 20%, respectively, benefiting
from strong portfolio and currency translation effects.
W"llhln this trend, the U.S. posted orders of €18,509 bil-
Imn and sales of €17.388 billien, for increases of 17% and
18% respectively. In Europe outside Germany, orders
and sales each rose 11%, to €29.117 billion and €27.105
biltion, respectively, primarily due to acquisitions.
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Liquidity for fiscal 2006 r :
Net cash provided by operating and investing activities
was €367 million in fiscal 2006, inchuding d ash outflows
for discontinued operations of €372 mlllmn In fnscal
2005, net cash used by operating and i inves tmg activities
wis €2.703 billion, including cash outflowsifor discon-
tinued operations of €1.214 billion. Ona con[mulng ba-
5is, operating and investing activities prov ided met cash
af €739 million in fiscal 2006 compared to et cash used
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of €1.489 billion in fiscal 2005. h i
Continuing operatians f Operations SFS, SRE and

N \ Corporate Treasury®* Siemens

) Year ended September 30,

{€inmillions) 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Net cash provided by (used in): I
Operating activities I 3,738 3,565 1,436 652 5,174 4,217
Investing activities It {3.115) (4,787) (1,3200 (919) {4,435) (5,706)
Net cash provided by (used Im) "
operating and investing acthvitles 523 1,222 116 (267) 739 (1.489)

* Also includes eliminations and reclassifications. :
Within Operations, net cash provided in operating
activities was €3.738 billion in fiscal 2006(0mpared 0
€3.565 billion in fiscal 2005. The current p‘rlod included
higher cash payouts for severance at Com .md SBS, total-
ing €612 million compared to €171 ml]llon ayear earljer,
while the prior-year peried included €1. 495 3 billionin
supplemental cash contributions to Sleme 1s pension
plans. Net working capital within Operauo 7s increased
by approximately €1.4 billion compared to approxlmate-
ly €0.3 billion a year earlier. The increase year-over-year
was primarily driven by volume growth, along with
improved net working capital turns at the hajoi‘ity of the
Groups. Within Financing and Real Estate ind Corporate
Treasury, net cash provided by operating activities was
€1.436 billion, up from €652 million ayeaulearl:er on
higher proceeds from foreign currency delivatives.

Operations used net cash in investing activities of
€3,115 billion in fiscal 2006, compared to €4.787 billion a
year earlier. Outflows for acquisitions and investments
totaled approximately €2.4 billion, including approxi-
mately €1.3 billion, net of cash acquired, for DPC. Cash
used for acquisitions and investments a year earlier
totaled approximately €3.0 billion, primarily for the fis-
cal 2005 acquisitions of VA Tech, Flender and CTI. Invest-
ing activities in the current period included €1.127 bil-
lion in net proceeds from the Infineon share sale. Within
Financing and Real Estate and Corporate Treasury, net
cash used in investing activities rose year-over-year pri-
marily on a higher net investment in marketable securi-
ties.

To finance business growth, Siemens in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 20H16 issued U.S. dollar-denominated
bonds in the amount of $5.0 billion (€3.9 billion}, and
euro- and British pound-denominated hybrid bonds in
the amounts of €900 million and £750 million (€1.1 bil-
lion), respectively.
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Funding status of pension plans

The funding status of Siemens’ principal pension plans
on September 30, 2006, was an underfunding of approx-
imately €2.7 billion compared to an underfunding of ap-
proximately €3.5 billion at the end of the prior fiscal
year. The return on plan assets during fiscal 2006 was
6.6%, leve] to the expected return of 6.7%. A slight in-
crease in the discount rate assumption at September 30,
2006, reduced Siemens’ projected benefit ohligation.

Economic Value Added

Siemens ties a portion of jts executive incentive compen-
sation to achieving economic value added (EVA} targets.
EVA measures the profitability of a business (using
Group profit for the operations Groups and income be-
fore income taxes for the Financing and Real Fstate busi-
nesses as a base) against the additional cost of capital
used to run a business (using Net capital employed of
the Operations Groups and risk-adjusted equity for the
Financing and Real Estate businesses as a base). A posi-
tive EVA means that a business has earned more than its
cost of capital, whereas a negative EVA means thata
business has earned less than its cost of capital. Depend-
ing on the EVA development year-over-year, a business is
defined as value-creating or value-destroying. Other
companies that use EVA may define and calculate EVA
differently.

Subsequent Events

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, Siemens decided
to provide funds for job placement cotnpanies for
employees affected by the bankruptcy of BenQ Mobile
GmbH & Co. OHG and for Inservio GmbH, with a cor-
responding impact on the Company’s income in fiscal
2007

On November 15, 2006, Munich public prosecutors
conducted searches of Company premises and private
homes in Munich and Erlangen, Germany as well as
in Austria, during which a large volume of documents
and electronic data were confiscated. These actions were
taken in connection with investigations of certain cur-
rent and former employees of the Company on suspicion
of embezzlement, bribery and tax evasion. For further
information on this subject and on associated risks,
ptease refer to cur Annual Report as well as 16 our
Form 20-F, which are available on the Siemens website
www.siemens.com and on the SEC's website
WWW.5EC.gOV.

This Short Report contains forward-looking statements and
lnfomwnon - thot is, statements related to fitire, not past,
evems 'I'he-;e statements may be identified by words such
as expecfs “anticipates,” “intends,” *plans,” “believes,”
seeks,. “estimales,” “will,” “project” or words of similar
meamng Such statements are based on our current expec-
Iquons ond certain assumptions, and are, therefore, subject
lo certain risks and uncertainties. A variety of factors, many
ofwhrch are beyond Siemens’ control, affect our operations,
performance business strategy and results and could cause
rhe uauul results, performance or achievements of Siemens
to 'be materiafly different from any future results, perform-
ance or, achievements that may be expressed or implied by
such (nrward -looking statements, For us, particular uncer-
tainties arise, among others, from: changes in general eco-
nomrc and business conditions (including margin develop-
mems in major business areas); the challenges of integrat-
mg major acquisitions and implementing joint ventures and
other significant portfolio measures; changes in currency
exchange rates and interest rates; introduction of compet-
ing products or technologies by other companies; lack of ac-
ceptance of new products or services by customers targeted
hy Siemens; chunges in business strategy; the outcome of
mvesngatmns and legal proceedings as well gs various oth-
er rnctors More detailed information about certain of these
factars is contained in Siemens’ filings with the SEC, which
are availoble on the Siemens website, www.siemens.com,
and on the SEC's website, www sec.gov. Should one or more
of !hese risks or uncertainties materialize, or should under-
fy:lng assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary
ma!enali‘y from those described in the relevant forward-
fookmg statement as expected, anticipated, intended,
plunned believed, sought, estimated or projected. Siemens
daes net intend or assurne any obligation to update or re-
vise these forward- loaking statements in Jight of develop-
ments which differ from those anticipated.




! Surmmary Financiat Resutts

The financial mform.mon présented on the following pages is extracted
from our audited Consohdated Financial Statements included in the Siemens
Annual Report for the year ended September 30, 2006. KPMG Deutsche Treu-
hand-Gesellschaft has audued our annual Consolidated Financial Stalements
as of and {or the years en;led September 30, 2006 and 2005 and issued an un-
qualified opinion. Sieme.as’ 2;006 Annual Report and Form 20-F including
these Consolidated Finarcial Statements with the related audilors’ report are
available on our website it www.siemens.com.

t

Siemens is registered in the Commercial Register (Handelsregister) main-
tained by the local couns[in Berlin-Charlotienburg, Germany, under the en-
try number 12300 and inllMunich, Germany, under the entry number 6684.
The Consolidated Financ]ial Statements and Management'’s Discussion and
Analysis as of September 30, 2006, prepared in accordance with Section 57
and 58 of the EGHGB in conjunctlon with §292a of the HGB (in the version ef-
fective until December 9, 2004) will be filed with these Commercial Registers

and published in the Fed'laral Gazette (Bundesanzeiger).

8/
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Consolidated Statements of Incor_rie

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005
(in millions of €, per share amounts in €)

[ . - . r ) Siemens
. T ) | H 5 2006 [ 2005
Netsales - . * "+ = . . ] . | 873351 . 75445
- Cost of sales | ' | 6381231 (54,146)
Gmss‘profk on sales n ] ' ' 23,513 I 21,299
Research and development expenses | ) (5.024}( ~(4,511)
Marketing, selling and general administrative expenses 1 I (15,470) {13.684)
Other operating income {expense), net 1 i 205 | 9
Income from investments in other companies, net : ! 647 | 584
Income (expense} fram finandial assets and marketable securities, net i A 337 1 297
Intergst expense of Operatians, net t 1 (39} (32)
Ozher interest income {expense}, net 1 ' i 202 1 241
o Income from continuiné operatians before income taxes . [ ' | 4,371 l 4,185
income taxest? ' | o078 ©79)
Minority interest 1 ' . (206)1 (148)
“Incama from cnritinuing opéralions ‘ 3,087 f 3,058
N . 1
tncome (loss) from discontinued aperations, net of income taxes { (54)| (310}
Net income i ! 3,033 | 3,248
Basic earnings per'share . ¢ l l
. Income from continuing operations ! 3.47 1 3.43
- Loss from discantinued operations. . B ; (0.07)1 {0.91)
‘Netincome ) ] | 340 | 2.52
Diluted earnings‘pet share ! I I
‘lncome from continuing operations . : | i 3314 3.29
Loss from discontinued pperations - | i (0.05)1 (0.87)
~Net incame i | ' | 3.26 ' 2.42

™ The income taxes of Eliminations, reclassifications and Corporate Treasury,
Oparations, and Anancing and Real Estate are based on the consolidated effective
corporate tax rate applied LD income before income taxes.
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Eliminations, - ' T . . ]
i reclassifications and ' L.
. ! Corporata Treasury Operations Finanting and Real Estate
1 3006 1 2005 1 2006° 7005 i 2006 2005 -
[} (LB5BH - (1,677} "1 86,843 | 74,969 1 23401, 2183
i 1858 § 1677. S (63,709} - (54,027) X 09601 (1,796)
A -1 - I [ asna0l 20942 - Nl b 357
3 — 1 - 1 (5.024)1 @511 ¥ -t v -
T &l 0 T (sa2nl - (13,395 . o1 @ant -~ (288
T 78! ®7) i 161 (136) ) 167 714
T i = Hi 538 1 192 N 109 ) 92
i (50)1 92 B 4004 255 - . . B {50},
1 -4 - 4l (39)4 (32) | - | i =
b 4201 294 i 55y (9 "y 137 1 - 138,
i 289 | . 298 ]l 3,653 | 3424 . . . az9 |- 463 .
i zul 70 Il won! (801) 1 poel " oow
1 y - \ (206)1 (148) ] —1 -
218 | 228 L 2sasd 2475 { EPER 355
i B I s (814) | e 4
| nsl 228 -l 25011 1661 ) 34 359
- : = — ,
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of September 30, 2006 and 2005
(in millions of €)

' Siemens

i i 9130106 | 930105

Assets ! 1 '

Current assets : I |
Cash and cash equivalents ' | 10,214 [ 8,121
Markatahle securities N ] 596 1 1,789
Accounts receivable, net ! H 15,149 | 17,122
Intracermpany receivables L | ~ 1 —
Inventories, net [ | 12,790 1 12,812
Deferred income taxes | | 1,968 | 1,484
Assets held for disposal i 1 7,189 | 245
Other current assets | ! 4,205 } 5,230
Total current assets ] | 51,611 P 46,803
Long-term investments I 3,922 J 3,768
Goodwill | 9,776 1 8,930
Qther intangible assets, net i 3,243 3,107
Property, plant and equipment, net } 12072 | 12,012
Deferred income taxes I 4,983 5,233
Qther assety | 5,366 . 5,264
Other intracompany recaivables i - | -
Total assets . | 90,973 | 86,117

Liabilities and sharaholdars’ equity } i [

[ Current liabilities J !
Short-term debt and current matuvities of long-term debt I 2,175 1 3,999
Accounts payable t 8,444 1 10,171
Intracempany liabilities i | - -
Accrued liabilities 1 | 9,126 | 10,176
Deferred income taxes ! ! 516 1,938
Liabilities hetd for disposal 1 ! 5,545 | 286
Other current liabdities . | 13,151 § 13,058
Total current liabilities ; | 38.957 | 39,631
Long-term debt ! 13,399 | 8,436
Pension plans and similar commitments i 1 4,101 | 4,917
Deferred income taxes : f 450 427
Other accruals and provisions i 1 4,058 5.028
Other intracompany kabilities ' 1 - -
’ i J 60,965 | 58,439
Minority interests ! | 702 | 656

Shareholders’ equity i I |

Commion stock, na par valug oo ! ‘ I

“Authorized: 1,1156,087,241 and 1,113,295,461 shares, respectively !

Issued: 891,087,241 and 891,085,461 shares, respectively . | 2,673 2,673
Additional paid-in capitat - - i ! 1 5,175 5,167
Retained earnings ' j 28,320 | 26,488
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ! (6,862} {7.305)
Treasury stock, at cost 415 and 9.004 shares, respectively ' i — | {1}

Total shareholders’ equity . : 29,306 i 27.022
Total liabilities and shargholders’ equity | 90,973 | 86,117
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Corporate Treasury | . Operations - i . . - Financing and Real Estate
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005
(in millions of €)

Siemeans
| 2006 | 2005

Cash flows from operating activities \ | i
Net income 1 | 3,033 1 2,248
Adjustments to reconcile net income ta cash provided i i |
~ Minority interest ) | [} 21314 158

Amortizatien, depreciation and impairments 'l 1 3012 4 3,426
Defarred taxes | 1 (378)1 (62B)
:Losses {gains) on sales and disposals of businesses and real astate, net | 1 (77 {226)
{Gains) ¢r: sales of investments, net { | (188)1 (49)
(Gains) en sales and impairments of marketable securities, net 1 i (382)1 (239)
{Irvome) loss from equity investees, net of dividends received ! _ {160}] 277)
Change in current assets and liabilties 1 1 [
{Increase) decrease in inventories, net 1 . ! {2,313}1 (717)

" {Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net | H (881)t 27
Increase (decrease} in outstanding balance of receivables sold I i {153): €]
(Increase) decrease in other current assets i 1 466 | 248 !
ingrease (decrease) in accounts payable . ! 259 | 89 |
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilties | | B85 | (144) |
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities } | 1,758 1 39 !

~ Suppiemental contributions to pension trusts t ! -1 (1,496)

Change in other assets and liabilities | { 687 | 6569
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities - continuing and discontinued operations { 5,981 | 3,121 |
< Netcash provided by (used in} operating activities - continuing o'pera\ions | 5174 | a217 |

Cash flows from investing activities * I | !

Additions to imangible assets and property, plant and equipment 1 | (3,970)? {3.544)

‘Acquisitions, net of cash acquired i ! (2.655) {2.450)

Purchases of investments i ' (389) (652)

Purchases of marketable securities t ! {1,489) (34)

(Increase) decrease in receivables from financing activities | i (469)§ . (511)

+ Increase (decrease) in outstanding balance of receivables sold by SFS | 1 =1 -
Proceeds from sales of long-term investments, intangibles and property, plant and equipment i 1,17 ¢ 977
Proceeds from sales and dispositicns of businesses | i {260)! 34
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities | : ¢ 2,701 . 356

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities — continuing and discontinued operations ! (4,614} | (5,824)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities — continuing o;;erations f (4,435} [ (5,706)

Eash flows from financing activities I | [

-Purchase of comman stack | ' ! 421} (219)

Proceeds from re-issuance of treasury stock b | 313 § 173

- Proceeds from issuance of debt | 6,701 ! -

Repayment of debt ! {1,710)1 (B4B}

Change in short-term debt ] {1,762)1 711

Dividends paid - i | | {1,201)1 (.12}

. Dividends paid to minarity shareholders | i {118)) (108)

* Intracompany financing | 1 — ! -
Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities | ] 1,802 } (1,403)

Eftect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents f t (76)! 3z

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents | { 2,093 1 (4,069)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period i . 8,121 i 12,190

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period | : 10,214 | 8,121

Supplemental disclosure of cash paid for: . | |
Interest” . t 596 7 441
Income taxes i | | ll91 ! 1,093

e e T —————————— )|
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 '
{in millions of €)

B . . - - ' . " ’
, i : Y . . ) .4 : . - Additional
oL : * ) . | . Common ; paid-in . Retained
- . [ b . . . stock . capital . .___earnings
Balance at Qctober 1, 2004 ) 1 ;2,673 . 51N 25,352
‘Netincome ~ - L . . (. - - - ‘2,248
Change in cyrrency translation aclj,ustrnent | ! =" L= -
Change in unrealized gains and losses - - N A — 4 - L -
Totalccmprehenswelncome | . - - - 2,248
Dividénds paid _~ «. - P - (,112)
Issuance of common stock and stock- hased congpensauon - LR R R S 60 - ' -
Purchase of common stock *  + ' . A - - ' -
Re-issuantce of treasury stock: . TR s (14) -
Balance at Septernber 30, 2005 . 1 e 5167 : 26,488
Nt income * } ' - - 3,033 i
;Change in currenty translation adjustment 1 i - - -
Change in unrealized gains and losses- " | ) - - i
g R . . B . i e
ﬁ”? i"?f.ftal comprehenstve |ncome . | v - . M‘QB'DBB’W
i v g T ! - ] ' y oo . St
DNIdE‘I‘IdSSBEId@% e : | - : = : o, 201)
Issuance of commen stock and stock-based compensamn ol - 44 -
Purchase of common stock \ . - . - -
Re-issuance of treasury stock ™ [ * = - +(36) -
Balanice at September 30, 2006 | 2673 5,175 28,320
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Segment Information (continuing operations)

As of and for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005,

(in millions of €}

. N - .

Lo e e L "New orders | o Intersegmem
rt - c S {unaudited)’. External sales sales’ Total sales
oL Ky ot <] 20060 2005 . 11 20061 2005 2006 1. . 2005 2006 b 2005
Operations Girolps [f ) i Bl ! 1° t

[ Communications {Com)™ 5 { 13,5711 12,869 i 12,752 1 13,901 328 * 300 13,080 1 12,201
Siemens Business Services (SBS), - | 50141 6531 0 3.667 1 3,964 1,490 | 1,409 3,157 1 5,373
' Automation and Drives {(ASD)® . 1 14,1081 10,674 - % 11,2851 9,018 ~ 1.563 | 1,348 12,848 | 10,366

L Industrial Solutions and Servn:esu&s)(ﬁh | 90251 7,189 i 7,752 [ '5.255 1,067 | 11,052 . 34,819 [ 6,307
Siemens Building Technologies (SBT) .t } 52351 4518, # 46701 4,301 . 126 114 4,796 i 4,415
Power Generation (PG} - ~ . 112,5321 10,964 4 10,068 1 B042 - 18 19 10,0861 8,061
- Power Transmission and Dlstrlbu:lcn (PTD} i BO281L 5283 . H 60251 3,930 484 { 320 6,509 | 4,250
:Transpartation Systems (TS} - } 6173 F 4559 K 44341 4,146 68 1 44 45021 4,190
Siemens VDO Automotive (SV) : - { 10,0141 9,787. B 10,003 } 9,591 - 14 ) 19 10017 1 9,610

- Medical Solutions (Med} =~ ., * ' - -1 93341 86N ) 8163 [ 7,577 64 [ 49 82271 7,626
QOsram ! ) b 45631 4300 & 44871 4,222 6L 78 4,563 (. 4,300
Qther Operations™©™ . 1 - .1 4964 1-4325 1 3,1291{ 2,692 1,699 b 1,528 4,828 1 . 4,220

Total Opérations Graups 7 }102,561 i 89,680

F 86,435 | 74,639

6997 | 6,280

|
i
1
1
i
}
1
[
f
]
!
]
]
]
|
)
4
]

1
I
1
i
I
j
[
1
1
]
i
1
|
i
1 93,432 '80,919
]
1
]

Recongiliation to financial statements i P | ; [ .

b _Corporate items, pensions and eliminations 1 (68371 (6,421} 1 871 77 (6.676)1 (6,027) {6,589 (5,950}
Other interest expense =1 e | -1 - -0 - =1 -
Other assets refated and mrscellaneous I I I [ s l

« reconiiling items . . L - - N - - -

Total Dperatmns (for columns Group ) :
‘profit/Net capital employed, i.e. Income . .
. before income taxes/Total assets)’ 95,724 | 83,259 86,522 1 74, ?16 3211 253 86,843 | 74,969
. i ; ._ . ] i 7 - 5
v . . .

Financing and Real Estate Greups i b t | i L 1 1.
Siemens Financial Services (SFS}), i 645 1 542 i 548 [ 464 ! 97 1 .78 ! 6451 542
Siemens Real Estate (SRE) ! C 1 17051 1,621 ]| 255 | 265 ] 14501 1,3%6 1 1,7051 3621
Eliminations. .. -+ - - - ] (103§ (ta) . | -1 — 1 (10} 4 (10} [ ot (0

Total Financing and RealEstate . - | 230! 24531 sozl 729 | 1537) 1424 | 2340] 253

— .
 Eliminations, reclassifications

‘ i (1,305)[ (1,621)

l (T.BSB)I (1.67;’) ’ (1,858)l {1,677)

and Corporate Treasury L

{ 96,250 } 83,791

[iiemeﬁs L -

87,325 ] 75,445

N

I 87,325 i 75,445

@ Group profit of the Operations Groups is earnings before financing interest,
certain pension costs and incoma taxes.

® Net capital empioyed of the Dperations Groups represents tolal assets less
tax assets, certain accruals and non-interest bearing liabilities other than tax
liahilities.

™ Jmangible assets, property, plant and equipment, acquisitions, and invest-
ments.

“ Includes amortization and impairments of intangible assets, depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, and write-downs of invesiments.

® Com'’s division Siemens Home and Cffice Communication Devices was
reclassified to Other Operotions in fiscal 2006. Prior year infarmation was
reclassified for comparability purposes.

‘¥ The divisions of the dissolved L&A Group were allocated as follows for all
periods presented: Electranic Assembly Systems were reclassified 1o ABD,
Postal Automation and Airport Lagistics were reclassified to 1&S anc Distri-
| bution and Industry Logistics as welt as Material Kandling Products were
réclassilied to Other Operations.
C GI."IEI Qperations primarily refer to certain centrally-held equity invest-
ments and other operating activities not associated with a Group.

® |ncludes (for Eliminations within Financing and Real Estate consists of)
cash pald for income taxes according to the allocation of income taxes 1o
Operations, Financing and Resl Estate, and Eliminations, reclassifica-
tions and Corporate Treasury in the Consclidated Statements of Income.
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' G

3 ' Yo . 7 Netcash from T < Amortization, |
a4 - Net capital . + operating and Capital * | - depreciation and |
H : Group profit® ’ -_employed® - . investing activities pending™® . - .impairments®
1~ 2006 t. 2005 Y 5130/06 k9/30/05 b 2006 | 2005 . . .. 20064 2005 . _ | 2006 |..2005
13 1 il i T .. - i T 3. P
bi 2831 421 Y 1.357% 4,799, 0 4 3551 621~ .1 3881 ‘479, | _ 280 ¢ . 3B6-
B (54901 (690) - * 1 458 1 296 I 1 (681)1 :(258) 1 284 + . 3407 - 290§+ 516
i 15721 1,253 1 4,249 ) 3,691 i 7 10411 404 T} 651 71,199 . .1 279§ .255°
1. 2t 167 1 1,640].1.775 I & 1771, an4 1 2521 . 70° . - { 1321° 107,
I+ 2341 - 18% 1 18341 1453. 4l ~ 1 (M3 1 1 2321 149 - 1 103 F- 104,
b 7821 651 1 29421 2625 . |l ] BEE 0 23¢ ] 6031 556 L] 215 |, - 196
b 3001 212 . .- % 21420 1B69 . 1 142t - 19’ T 1891 161.. - ) 1181 ' 84/
1 BOoj] ~ 45 ' | 649 | - 584 i . 131 :{551) - ] 150 { 1857 ¢ i 56 f+ rx 57.
i 6691 630 i 41900 3823 Nl 1 4391 341 ! 4871. .623 1 #1517 a7
Y. 1,061 976 - 1 53361 3.685 A\ (3921 396 "} 16534 10251 » 1 782t " 249
174811 465 1 20561 2065 il__1__a1ai _ 464, 1 3531 307" Y 2571 261
L. (36}i___76 719431 1,692 1§ (133 768 v 20610 172 ° T 1341 241
I 5,256 | 4,687 | 28,796 § 25,357 ] 15981 2,539 { 54471 5268 | 25211 2863
E f | | . | | . { | i I

T~ (1,248 (1.072) | 3.983)1 (3.690) A1 (975)%(3,761)" i 1711470 T a4l 29
(3551 __(191) 1 — - i - . [ 1 - i - -
- : ks . 3 T : .
|E -; - I 58,734 l’59.699 - - | —l = l - ki -
lfl 1 l [ . I { . | 1 ‘

[ . L ’ -

[ 3,653 ) 3,424 83,547 | 81,366 623l 22y . . | sg8l 573 . '} 2,565 +..2,892.
b Income before . ‘ . . T, 5
“- income taxes Total assets- - 5 ' L ' L

1 1. ! 1-- 4 1 i ' ! [ BN |
T 3071 319 . 110522 110,048 1i 1 (219)i  (344) i 5201t °563_. . . ] 2501, .22

T 1221 . 144 | 32341 3496 4l 1 1871  202.. Y 2701, 2. . .t 1921+ .203
[H -1 - L @enr. 340y Il 1 (a0® (7@ "1 — ) - i 1 4-
I 429! 463 “{az2es {13306 - L | azal 5w ] el s ) sa2l 224
;

’ ¥ .
289 I FIT) | (5,3&9)| (8,553). ° B3% @, I —i - - I o P
I aan | aiss [oo973 Lasniz- Ml [ 739) caney ~ [6a0ed 6511 o «f z007 1 3.3‘16]
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Five-year summary

Sales and earnings (in mlllncms of euros) N . ! 2006 1 2005 2004 ' 2003 20027
Netsales: =~ [ A L -k 87,3254 75,445 70,237 69,775 84,016
-Grass profit on sales LR .o - b 235131L 21,299+ 20.128 .. 19,836 23,206
Incamefromcommumgoperanons L : v 30871 3,058 3,450 ‘2,355 -
Netincome -+ A ! LAE 3,033 1 2,248 +3,405 2,445 2,597
Asseti, liabilities and sharehnlders equity (;n m:lllons nf euros}  * 2006 { 2005 . 2004 * 2003 200210
Current assets. T 51,611 § 46,803 T45,946 43,489 44,062
LCurrent l-al:ullues. ‘ ” T - 38,957 1 39,631 33,379 32,028 T 34,712
Debln . L " | 155241 12,435 “11,219. . "13178 12,346

“Long-termdebt . - - ) T 13399 (. 8436 - 9785 . 11433~ 10,243
Net debt® -~ e - ! (4,76431 - (2,525) "2,357 (379) (751)
Pension plans and smlarcommnments N - 4,101 { 4,917 4,392 5.843° 5,326
Shareholders' equity- - - 29,306 | 27,022 ~ 26,760 23 620 23,465
- as & percentage of total assets” ) - 321 N Sucow 345 ~-¥30%
Tota! assets WATINANIRAMIR R oD A5 e 9&:""-""-"—'3’"2;5'1"1 90,973 W3 86,1178% 79,430 1

Employee costs in'millions of euros)' .~ . : |

Ty ,_15
2006 b 5‘5"2905 T 2004

‘el cash provided by operating actmtm““ " st 5174\ 474 + 4,704 54 1 5849 -

4 Amortization, depreciation and impairments i 3,007 F° 3,316 ©.3,248 *3,230 04,126

Net cash used in investing activities . . {4,435} 1 (5,706) - {1,689} (3,848) - {B10)

+ Capital spending™ 3208y T + {6,409)1  {6,511) (4,481} (4.544) * . (8,013}

Net cash provided by (used in) ﬁnancmg activities 1,802 [ {1,403} . {3,108} (487) (859)

'Net increase (decrease) in tash and cash equivalents ) o 2,093 {4,069) - 41 953 ~ 3,394 "

Employeeé contmumg_operanons . . 2006 | 2005 2004 2003 20027

Employees™ (September 30, in thousands)'. . 71 475 1 461 424 - 411 426
29,396 | 26,646 25,096 25,434 27,195

v} Amounts for 2002 are nat adjusted for discontinued operations (see Note 3 for further
infarmation on discontinued operatians). Accordingly, amounts for 2002 are not directly
comparable with the Company's fiscal data for 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2001,

@ Wet debt includes four positions af the Consolidated Balance Sheets: Cash and cash
equivalents, Marketabte securities, Short-term debt and curment maturities of long-term
<ebk and Lorvg-term debt.

O intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, acquisitions, and investments.

@ without temporary student workers and trainees.

®F EVA for fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 has been aiculated according to the assumptions
used in fiscal 2006,

% Amaunts for 2003 are not adjusted for discontinued operations.

™ Yo be proposed at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting.

® XETRA closing prices, Franidurt,

™ Based on shares outstanding.

For detailed information see Annual Report.
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Key capital market data . ' " ) I _—t ) PR 2 -

“(in eures, unless atherwise indicated) i 2006 2005, " 2004 . 2003 2002

EVA (in millions of euros) 1 , i 1,324 i 1,311 14,7209 - 4490 . 617 -

Earnings per share from continuing operations * . Il 1 347 ¢ 3.43- . 387 2.655 - ... 2.92

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operatiois ! 1 3311 3.29 an L2617 - 292,

Dividend per share - [[ i 1.457 1.35. L0125, v - 110 10

Siemens stack price®™ - . || A | i . e . :

" High il [ | 79.77 1 66.18 : 68.30 58.321 . -+ 78.52
Low:: . . I | .} 60.08} 45620 5202 -+ 32.05. . 34.00
Year-end ($eptember 30). . . H | I . .} eBBO1 64110 ~U159.21y 51147 ¢ --34.00-

Siemens stock performanca over prior year (in percentage paints) B } E ' R .

1 Compared to DAX index N M { -9.801 -19.10 -1.59 " +3634  +1B8.25
Compared to Dow Jones STOXX index 1] I -B461 -17.85- +0,17 +4481 .+ 787
Number of shares {in millians) - ] 39l . 831~ | 8971 89 ‘8907
Market capitalization at period-end (in millkons of edfes)® .1 61,3071 57,118 ¢ 52,76% - 45,559 . 30,271

Credit rating of long-term debt . | < | i o . B .
Standard & Poor’s i 1 AA- | AA— AA- AA— AA-
Moody’s 1 Aad | Aa3 - Aa3 -~ Aa3’ Aa3

3 -

Quarterly data (in millions of euros) 1 2006 | 4™ Quarter 37 Gisarter 2 Quarter. 1% Quarter
Net sales ) || i B7.325 | 23,923 - 21,173 21,510¢ 20,71¢
Netincome i 1 3,033t 4 541 © 792 . . 837 . . 813

\Quarterly data {in miliions of euros) T 2005 4% Quarter 3% Quarter 2™ Quarter 1° Quarter
Net sales ) - - - 75,445 ' 22106 18,583 . 12,726 117,030
Net income” [1] 2,248 77. . 389 - V781 - . 1,001

|

Siemens »:IG - Statement of inctf:me ar;d balancelgheel‘ 7 : i
(condensed version) (in billions of euros - N B -

Years ended September 30 2006 - 2005 As of September 30 _. | 2006 | <2005,
Net sales i 3x91° 302 Froperty. plant equipment i 234 “1.5
Cost of sales R (217 ‘Investments 1 3561 . 411
Gress prefit on sales i g1, a5 -Non-current - 1 3791 426
Other functional costs 11 {1231, (8.8} . Inventeries . - 1 0.11 -
Otherincome and expense, net . i 1.5 1i 1.9 Receivabies and prepaid expense 1 1831 5.0
Income before income taxes. i AN 1:6 " Marketable securities, liquid assets 1 821L 6.0
Income taxes ! W34 (01) Total assets . 1 545 L 53.6
Net income i a4l 1.5 " Sharehoiders equity 1 1641 . 16.1
Profit available for distribution ! W3l 1.2 Accrued liabilities and special reserves i 1551 1B
 Prepared in accordance with the German Commercial Code LE Debt - i 03} 0.2

' Other liabilities ) - | 3231 29.2
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilites .* 14 64.5 | 63.6 -
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Corporate Structure

Managing Board of Siemens AG" . ' }

Corporate Executive Committee

Klaus Kleinfeld, Joe Kaeser
President and Head of CF

. Chief Executive Officer Special responsibility: SFS
“Head of CD

Special respensibilities: CC, GA
Jirgen Radomski
Head of CP
Special responsibilities: Med,
DSRAM, MCP

Corporate Departments

Johannes Feldmayer
Special respensibilities; $BS,
SBT, SRE, CIO. CSP, GSS,
Europe

Rudi Lamprecht
Special responsibilities: BSH®,
FSC™, Africa, Middle East, C.I.S.

Hermann Requardt
Head of CT

Special responsibilities: SV,
Japan

Uriel ). Sharef

Special responsibilities: PG, PT

Americas

Corporate Development (CO) Corporate Finance (CF)

Corporate Persannel {CP)

‘Corporate Technolagy (CT)

Klaus Kleinfeld Joe Kaeser Jurgen Radomski Hermann Requardt
Reinhart Bubendarfer Dominik Asam Giinther G. Goth Reinhold Achatz
Herbert Figge Paul Hobeck Albrecht Schifer Winfried Bittner
Thomas Frischmuth Ralf P Thomas

Horst-). Kayser

Operations

Automation and Control Power Transportation Medical
Automation and Drives Power Generation Transportation Systems Medical Solutions
(AR {PG) 41 & | (Med)

Helmut Gierse Klaus Voges Hans M. Schabert Erich R, Reinhardt
Hannes Apitzsch Ralf Guntermann Alfred Frank Thomas Miller
Pater Drexel Michael S8 Jérn F. Sens Siegried Russwurm

Anton S. Huber

Industrial Selutiens and
Services (185}
Joergen Ole Haslestad
Bernd Euler

Hans-Jérg Grundmann
Joachim Mbiter

Randy H. Zwirn

fl Power Transmission and
Distribution (PTD)
tido Niehage

Pamela Knapp
Christian Urbanke

Siemens Building
Technologles'® (SBT)
I Heirrich Hiesinger
Johannes Milde
Rolf Renz

Friedrich Smaxwil

Siemens VDO Autdmotive
(5V) \
Woligang Dehen

Klaus Egger

Helmut Matschi

Reinhard Pinzer

- Klaus Stegemann

Regional arganization

Regional Organization Germany, (RD) YRegional CompaniesARepresentative, DfficesTAgencics Il

@ See also pages 16-17,

@ Atfiliates: BSH Bosch ung Siemens Hausgerdte GmbH,
Fujitsu Siemens Cormputers {Holding} By

@ Company uhit in Siemens Schweiz AG

¥ Suspended since November 73, 2006
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cial responsibilities: A&D, 1&S, TS,
, Australia

}:xs Wucherer

Eduardo Montes
Head of Com

Erich R. Reinhard
Head of Med

Corporate Centers

Financing and
Real Estate

rrmatiun and Commuynications

Lighting

Corporate Communications
1e8]

Janos GBnczil

Corporate Informatien Office
Q0

Volkhart P. Matthdus

Corporate Supply Chain and
Proqurement

(CsP)

Bernd Regendantz

Global Government Affairs

(GA}

Harald Braun

Global Shared Services
(G55

Denice Kronau

7ens BUsiness SeTvices — 1 ISigniens, Financial Sarvices Managemant Consulting
B8 COYOHG535) ety | BT KD | | Maneger
}istoph Kollatz Martin Goetzeler Herbert Lohneid L“:ﬁflmgen SchioB
gen Frischmuth Kurt Gerl Peter Moritz
-hael Schulz-Drost Johannes Narger tohannes Schmidt
- Claus Regitz Mike Treanor

jm)

sardo Montes

dreas Bernhardt
srsten Heins
1-Heinz Seibert

+Sle_|"?“e'n_s'ne_a! E'stEle
1(SRE}

Michagl Kutschenreutes!)

F.—

As of Detober 1, 2006
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Siemens financial calendar*

j
. — T
First-qguarter financial report - [ Jan. 25, 2007
‘Annual Shareholders’ Meeting - i
Glympiahalle, Munich, 10:00 a.m. ‘ Jan. 25, 2007
Ex-dividend date | Jan, 26, 2007
Second-quarter financial report
and Semiannual Press Conference : Apr. 26, 2007
Third-quarter financial report ‘ July 26, 2007
|
Preliminary f'igufes for fiscal year/ Press conference - Nov, 8, 2007
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting for fiscal 2007 ‘ lan. 24,2008

* Provisional. Updates will be posxed at:
www.siemeéns.comifinancial_calendar.
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{Org.)
codelCity

Street
Country

Postal

Order card

BEK GmbH
Nordweg 6
D-75245 Neulingen
GERMANY

Order card
Please fill out the attached card
completely and legibly. Copies

- will be sent to the address as

provided.

Please use the attached card to order copies of the
junabridged version of the Annual Report:

ll Annual Report 2006

m Geschaftsbericht 2006

’- Rapport annuel 2006

. Memoria del ejercicio 2006

|Siemens employees may also obtain additional copies

jfrom LZF, Fiirth-Bislohe, Germany:
|

lntranet http:licabs.spls.def
| Telefax +49 911 654-4271
| English QOrder no. A19100-F-V70-X-7600
| German Order no. A19100-F-V70
French Order no. A19100-F-V70-X-7700

[ Spanish Order no., A19100-F-V70-X-7800

!

| Employees should include mailing address and

t complete company unit designation (Org-1D) when
! ordering.



Please specify Unabridged versions

|
’ [} Annual Report 2006 (English)

[ ] Geschaftsbericht 2006 (German)
D Rapport annuel 2006 (French)

[] Memoria del ejercicio 2006 (spanish)

Address
Siemens AG :
Wittelsbacherplatz 2 i
80333 Munich

Federal Republic of Germany

Www.siemens.com
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Pursuant to the requircments of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, lihereunto duly authorized.
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!‘_ SIEMENS AKTIENGESFLLSC

Date: December 22, 2006 By:

t Name:

Title:

| By:

Name:

O . : . Title:

Dr. Ral? P. Thomas '
Corporgte Vice President and Controller

Dr. Klaus Patzak
Cofporate Vice President
Fipancial Reporting and Controlling




